
 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 12, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. FLAG SALUTE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(This time is provided for questions or statements by persons in the audience on any item of 
Planning Commission business, except those items which appear on this agenda. Comments 
shall be limited as determined by the Chairperson.) 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Review and approval of July 27, 2015, Special Session Minutes 
  
6. PUBLIC HEARING 

None Scheduled 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Revisit and discuss Comprehensive Plan status-previously reviewed at the 
August 13, 2014 Planning Commission meeting   

 
9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

10. STAFF COMMENTS 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Planning Commission meetings to be held at the North Plains Senior Center, 31450 NW 
Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. Meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.:  
 
Wednesday, Sept. 9, 2015 Wednesday, October 14, 2015 Thursday, November 12, 2015 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 84



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION.  
SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES 
July 27, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 
North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 
 
1. Chairperson King called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. The pledge of allegiance was led by Chairperson King. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

Members: Chair Stewart King, Vice Chair Heather LaBonte, Garth Eimers, James 
Fage, Larry Gonzales, Lonnie Knodel, Doug Nunnenkamp 

Ex-Officio: City Councilor Sandi King 
Staff: Planning Consultant Andrew Tull, 3J Consulting, Inc.; Public Works 

Director / Interim City Manager Blake Boyles; City Recorder Margaret 
Reh 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 None were forthcoming. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 A.  Approval of the May 13, 2015, Regular Session Minutes. 
 
Chair King had a number of changes to the minutes prior to the minutes being approved. James 
Fage was in attendance at the May 13, 2015 meeting but was not listed on the roll call. 
 
Motion by Eimers. Second by LaBonte to approve the May 13, 2015, Regular Session Minutes 
with the corrections. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  

A. Quasi-judicial public hearing on application received from Zarosinski Engineering 
and Design, File No. 15-036 Design Review, on behalf of Jewett-Cameron Lumber 
Products, to construct a warehouse building and covered loading area located at 
32275 NW Hillcrest in North Plains, Oregon 

 
King explained that the Planning Commission will conduct two Quasi-judicial public hearings 
King requested the reading of the quasi-judicial hearing process statement. King opened the 
public hearing for File No. 15-036 Design Review at 7:08 p.m. King called for personal bias, ex 
parte contacts or any conflicts of interest by any Planning Commissioner. Hearing none, he 
asked if anyone in the audience challenged any of the Commissioner from hearing this case.  
King asked for the staff report. Andrew Tull, Consultant from 3J, 5075 SW Griffith Drive, Suite 
150, Beaverton, Oregon 97005, presented the staff report. Tull walked the Commission 
through each of the conditions of approval that were included in the Agenda Packet. 
 
King asked the applicant to come forward. Dean Zarosinski, 1400 NW 155th Circle, 
Vancouver, WA, 89685, represents the applicant and presented their application to the 
Commission. The application was included in the Agenda Packet. Discussion ensued. 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 84



City of North Plains Planning Commission 
July 27, 2015, Special Session Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
King asked for any proponents, opponents, or those neutral to testify to the public hearing. 
None were forthcoming.  King asked if there were any further comments from the 
Commissioners. There were none. 
 
King closed public hearing at 7:28. 
 
Motion by Eimers. Second by Fage to approve File No.15-036 Design Review for Jewett-
Cameron Lumber Products, subject to the conditions that were stated. Motion was passed 
unanimously. Tull will compile the conditions of approval and prepare them for signature and 
distribution to interested parties. 
 

B. Quasi-judicial public hearing on application received from Laurie A. Verboort, File 
No. 15-037 for a minor partition dividing property located at 11440 NW Gordon 
Road, North Plains, Oregon, into two lots. 

 
King opened the public hearing at 7:30 p.m. for File No. 15-037, an application requesting a 
minor partition. King called for personal bias, ex parte contacts or any conflicts of interest by 
any Planning Commissioner. Hearing none, he asked if anyone in the audience challenged any 
of the Commissioner from hearing this case.  
 
King asked for the staff report. Andrew Tull, Consultant from 3J, 5075 SW Griffith Drive, Suite 
150, Beaverton, Oregon 97005, presented the staff report which was included in the Agenda 
Packet. Prior to final plat approval staff is recommending to the Commission that if this is 
approved, the applicant will be required to meet all the conditions of approval listed in the staff 
report. Tull also referenced a submission that was just received from Naomi Vogel from 
Washington County Land Use and Transportation, stating that NW Gordon Road and NW North 
Avenue are County-maintained road sections and the County will review for access and 
frontage improvements at the time redevelopment of the site(s) and/or additional lots are 
proposed. Tull stated the Commission can incorporate her suggested conditions in the City’s 
Notice of Decision. This would be to implement the County’s access-spacing standards for 
Arterials/Collectors by requiring the applicant to record a motor vehicle access restriction along 
both lot frontages of NW Gordon Road and NW North Avenue on the plat. Access to NW Gordon 
Road from Parcel 2 requires County review and approval prior to construction of an access. 
 
Tull walked the Commission through each of the conditions of approval that were included in 
the Agenda Packet. 
 
King stated there could be issues with the applicant being able to complete all these conditions 
of approval in one year since she is not planning on developing the property. She can comply 
with certain conditions but at this point some will not be obtainable. There might be some 
conflicts with some of the requirements.  Discussion ensued. 
 
King asked applicant Laurie Verboort, 11440 NW Gordon Road to come forward. Verboort 
explained that her intentions are to only partition the property and not develop it in the near 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 84



City of North Plains Planning Commission 
July 27, 2015, Special Session Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 
future. She addressed the master plan that she will submit as a condition of approval. This will 
be a shadow plan configuration. This is to ensure we are not creating a situation that will not 
allow access to one of the properties. Discussion ensued. 
 
King asked for any proponents, opponents, or those neutral to testify to the public hearing. 
None were forthcoming.  King asked if there were any further comments from the 
Commissioners. There were none. 
 
King closed public hearing at 8:05. 
 
Motion by Knodel. Second by Gonzales to approve File No.15-037 minor partition for property 
located at 11440 NW Gordon Road based off what was discussed and including the condition 
submitted from Washington County and the other changes discussed. Motion was passed 
unanimously. Tull will compile the conditions of approval and prepare them for signature and 
distribution to interested parties. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Approval of Proposed Street Naming in the McKay Creek Crossing Development 
 
This item was introduced and briefly discussed at the May 13, 2015 Planning Commission 
meeting. AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC, on behalf of Biggi Construction, had submitted an 
application requesting the street name of “NW Bartlett Loop” to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission. The original subdivision submittal had listed the name “NW McKay Creek Loop” 
but it was determined that this name was too similar to another street name in North Plains. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the street naming policy. Bartlett is a heritage name as they 
were the owners of the property. The map is showing that there are two street names 
assigned to this loop. NW Highland Court is being extended east to the southern section of 
the loop. It was decided that “Highland Court” be removed from the loop and everything east 
of 307th should be assigned one name being “NW Bartlett Loop”.  
 
Motion by LaBonte. Second by Nunnenkamp for the approval of the tentative name of “NW 
Bartlett Loop” and removing the “Highland Court” for the section discussed for the street that 
loops through the new McKay Creek Crossing subdivision. Motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

None Scheduled 
 

9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Nunnenkamp brought up the decision of the City Council to approve the 
application regarding the Eggiman property that had previously been denied by the Planning 
Commission. Nunnenkamp is concerned with the City losing its commercial property to 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 84



City of North Plains Planning Commission 
July 27, 2015, Special Session Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 
residential. Chair King suggested that Ex officio King could take the comments and the 
Planning Commission’s concerns to the City Council. 
 
Commissioner Eimers submitted drawings of suggestions for possible future cul-de-sac 
configurations, which were distributed to the Commissioners. The Commission had discussed 
this previously. Discussion ensued. 
 
10. STAFF COMMENTS 

None were forthcoming. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
Chairperson King adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m. The next scheduled regular session of 
the Planning Commission is tentatively set for Wednesday, August 12, 2015, which is 
currently scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
 
 
Date Minutes Approved: ________________ 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 84



 

Agenda Item No: 8A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  August 5, 2015 

To:  North Plains Planning Commission 

From:  Public Works Director / Interim City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: Revisiting Discussion and Decision  

Request:  Chair King had asked to revisit this topic and to hear what the status of the 
recommendations the Planning Commission made and when they may be going to the 
City Council for approval. 
 
Background:  
A Joint Work Session with the City Council and Planning Commission was held on 
Monday, October 13, 2014 to discuss proposed changes to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Those proposed changes were intended to provide a general update to the Plan to 
reflect actual trends in growth in the community, and extend the planning horizon to the 
year 2028.  Additionally, amendments to the municipal code to implement the revised 
Comprehensive Plan were considered.  Key changes included new and revised zoning 
district for public facilities and institutions.  The Comprehensive Plan Map was also 
proposed to be revised to reflect current uses and future planning. 
 

Prior to the Joint Work Session on October 13, 2014, the North Plains Planning 
Commission had met for a public hearing on August 13, 2014 and September 10, 2014. 
This public hearing was continued through their November 12, 2014 meeting in which it 
was closed until further notice. Council had decided a consultant should be hired to 
work on the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed changes presented by the Planning 
Commission would be revisited after progress had been made with the Envision North 
Plains Steering Committee and the appropriate community outreaches. 
 
Excerpt from August 13, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes: 
C. Comprehensive Plan Update 
The Commission’s role in regard to the Plan is outreach to the public. Discussion on the 
Plan revisions began in September 2013. Proposed changes had been posted on the 
website and have been submitted to DLCD for approval. Outreach has included letters 
requesting comments to all parcel owners in North Plains; public notice published in the 
newspaper; articles in the City newsletter; information booth at the National Night Out and 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 84



the North Plains Farmers’ Market. The City will continue to welcome comments 
throughout this process. 
 
Mike Eggiman of 22865 NW Yungen Road, Hillsboro approached the Commission. 
Eggiman is the property owner of the 9.8 acres on Glencoe between Pacific and Cottage. 
He proposed zoning the back lots to R2.5 and keeping the front properties available for 
commercial development. This would keep residential in the area closer to McKay creek. 
 
DeBry asked the Commission if they have any other suggestions for changes. LaBonte 
had submitted modifications at the July Commission meeting that will be incorporated in 
the final copy of the Plan. There has been discussion of possibly changing the zoning on 
Commercial Street just east of 311th from R-2.5 back to commercial zone. Staff wants to 
work with the owners of the property before making any changes. Buildable lands 
inventory was the major change. We need to revise the numbers of the available acreage 
that is left to build on. DeBry did not want to make any alterations to the working copy yet 
as this is what was submitted to DLCD.  
 
Consensus is to continue the public hearing and keep it open to continue to receive 
public testimony until the Commission meeting on September 10, 2014. Comments can 
be sent directly to the City Manager or an individual may just show up at the September 
meeting. The Planning Commission will have one more run through with the revisions. A 
work session will then be scheduled with the Planning Commission and the City Council 
to discuss the progress.   

 
Excerpt from September 10, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting 
B. Comprehensive Plan Update 
There will be a joint work session on Monday 7:00 p.m. on September 22 at Jessie 
Mays Community Hall with the City Council and the Planning Commission. Since the 
public hearing remains open any input from citizens with any comments will still be 
taken. 
 
Commissioner Eimers stated when he read Chapter 1 regarding Vision, he could not 
find a vision. He inquired regarding the process to achieve the vision for the community. 
He would like to address pedestrian access and bicycle trails. He also felt the citizen 
input is rather passive at this time. He stated staff is notifying the public regarding 
opportunities for input to the Comprehensive Plan which complies with requirements, 
but Eimers would like to see a more proactive approach to community input. Discussion 
ensued. He stated that the city needs citizen input—it is good for the city. The 
demographics of the community continually changes causing the citizen involvement 
process to be dynamic. Eimers volunteered to put together some ideas for the Joint 
Work Session on the 22nd.  
 
The Commission would like to see some of the information that has been tabulated from 
past surveys and input from the citizens.  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 84



 
King stated that any corrections should be sent to staff to get everything ready for the 
meeting on the 22nd. 
 
It was suggested that the Commissioners bring questions to the Council at the Work 
Session. This is still the beginning of the process for the Comprehensive Plan revisions. 
 
Public hearing on Comprehensive Plan update will be continued to the next Planning 
Commission meeting on October 8, 2014. The continued public hearing remains open. 
 
Excerpt from November 12, 2014 Planning Commission meeting minutes: 
B. Comprehensive Plan Update (Approved January 14, 2015) 
This was a continued public hearing from the August 13, 2014 Planning Commission 
meeting. DeBry stated the City Council has decided to hire a consultant to engage the 
community in the Comprehensive Plan and to develop the Comprehensive Plan. There 
will be an interview process to hire this consultant. The public hearing was closed at this 
time with no action taken. A public hearing will be noticed at a future date. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   None at this time 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 84



 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 84



 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 84



 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 84



 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 84



 
 
 

 
 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 84



 

 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 84



 

 
 
 
 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 84



1 
 

Comprehensive Plan Discussion 

(informational – this whole list is not all included in 8/12/15 PC Packet) 

at Joint Meeting of 

City Council and Planning Commission 

9/22/14 

Contents 
Joint Study Session of City Council and Planning Commission ..................................................................... 2 

Comprehensive Plan Vision Statement ......................................................................................................... 3 

The Principles of New Urbanism ................................................................................................................... 7 

Planning Commission Staff Report August 2014 ........................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

General Information About Big Box Stores .................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Grocery Sites with Small Acreages ................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Articles Related to Large Retail Stores ........................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

The Incredible Shrinking Box...................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Freddies' New To-Do List ........................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Target opens smallest store ever ............................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Walmart US Accelerates Small Store Growth ............................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Small-Mart ................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Walgreens Outlines Growth Opportunities and Strategy at 2014 Annual Shareholders Meeting ... Error! 

Bookmark not defined. 

Franchise Stores:  Example Taco Bell ......................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

How Much Does It Cost to Open a Pharmacy? .......................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

How much money is required to start a Pharmacy? ................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Information about other local agencies ........................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Banks expands urban growth boundary, adds Quail Valley Golf Course... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Excerpts from City of Banks UGB Expansion Justification Technical Report 2010 ... Error! Bookmark not 

defined. 

Gaston housing development could double the city's size........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Annexation History ........................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Maps for annexation votes ........................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 84



2 
 

 

  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 84



3 
 

Joint Study Session of City Council and Planning Commission 
 

This packet includes background information in preparation for Monday’s discussion of the 

Comprehensive Plan.  The focus of the discussion should be at 30,000 ft level, ensuring that the vision 

remains valid, and City policies are aligned with that vision. 

The Mayor has requested that I make a brief presentation, and then the Council and Commission engage 

in a discussion, and general direction is provided for updating the plan and community outreach.  As 

time permits we can review the proposed Comprehensive Plan Map changes and specific changes to the 

ordinances that are under study.   

The proposed draft of the comprehensive plan, map and proposed ordinance revisions are available at 

http://cityofnp.org/index.php/departments/public-meetings/planning-commission/comprehensive-

plan-update/ Additionally, supporting documents can be found at this link. 

Everyone should be reminded we are the beginning of the process of amending the plan not the end.  

There will be several more opportunities for the Planning Commission and Council to review and shape 

proposed changes. 

 

 

 

  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 84

http://cityofnp.org/index.php/departments/public-meetings/planning-commission/comprehensive-plan-update/
http://cityofnp.org/index.php/departments/public-meetings/planning-commission/comprehensive-plan-update/


4 
 

Comprehensive Plan Vision Statement  
 

(Below is the adopted vision statement of the City of North Plains Comprehensive Plan.  

Strike-thrus are proposed deletions and highlights are added language.) 

 

15.010.050 The Vision 

 

We, the City of North Plains, shall create a new community identity by focusing on the 

following concepts: 

 

1.  Livability - We will establish a community that is based on the notion of livability and 

the principles of new urbanism.  At the forefront of these principles is the walkable 

neighborhood that is highly connected through a traditional street grid network that 

facilitates pedestrian traffic.  These principles call for increased density and a range 

of residential, commercial and retail uses within walking distance of each other.  Such 

compact communities promote greater pedestrian traffic without excluding 

automobiles.  Major roads are designed to be at the edges of neighborhoods so as 

not to disrupt the pedestrian movement or rent the social fabric. Neighborhoods will 

have defined centers which include public spaces such as a park or community 

square.  

 

Architecture and landscape design will celebrate local history, climate, ecology, and 

building practices.  Commercial buildings will be designed to front on pedestrian-

friendly streets rather than parking lots or major highways and houses are primarily 

designed with garage doors and driveways facing rear alleys so as not to conflict with 

sidewalks, to promote social interaction between residences and passers-by and to 

increase safety by accommodating more “eyes on the neighborhood”. Housing will be 

situated relatively close to the city’s center, thereby enhancing the center’s economic 

viability.  Developing offices, retail and residential spaces within the same 

neighborhoods will create an aesthetically appealing street scene.  A sense of 

community and belonging will be promoted by mixing development uses such as 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 84



5 
 

parks, schools, homes, shopping and jobs close to one another and by providing a 

range of housing options that facilitates diversity in income and age levels, ethnic 

backgrounds and family units that live and work in the same neighborhood.  

 

As a result, it is our goal that our community will  

a) promote healthier lifestyles that reduce stress by reducing vehicle miles traveled 

and by providing pedestrian-friendly narrow streets,  

b) facilitate greater community involvement through mixed-use land planning and 

quality architecture, and 

c) cultivate stronger social equity through diversity in housing choices and less 

dependence on the automobile.  

 

2.  Quality - We will be known throughout the state for the effort of our people to maintain 

and enhance our small town roots while being a good, healthy, and economically 

viable place to live and work.  

 

3.  Difference - We are different from any other community in Washington County and 

our ability to enhance our identity will be credited to the foresight, creativity and 

action of the people, our greatest asset.  

 

4.  Diversity -Given our potential to develop yet untapped assets, we will become 

more diverse physically, culturally and economically.  We will anticipate and 

embrace this trend.  

 

5.  Opportunity, Equity, and Fairness - Our community will be shaped by the people 

who live and work here, and will offer a place where individual effort is supported 

and encouraged, where people care about each other, and where we actively 

pursue our fair share of future opportunities coming to the region.  

 

6.  Character - We will create a sense of place, an identity that is clearly apparent and 

consciously embraced.  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 84



6 
 

 

7.  Growth - We will continue to grow and become a place where jobs, affordable 

housing, and public services are available and capable of meeting the needs of the 

evolving urbanizing population. We will become a net importer of jobs. The City will 

encourage, where possible, expansion to the north and east to maximize 

connectivity and availability of existing services.  

 

8.  Accessibility -We will grow dramatically along our major existing transportation 

routes, the local system assets of State Highway 26, Glencoe Road, Dersham 

Road, Jackson School Road and the Burlington Northern Rail Line.  Mobility will be 

planned for and provided through an efficient, balanced transportation system, as 

well as with safe and adequate connections to the regional transportation network.  

 

9.  Density -We will continue to recognize the importance of balancing low, medium 

and high density land use.  

 

10.  Linkage - We will put considerable and thoughtful effort into ensuring that quality 

relationships are maintained between urban and rural uses, downtown  town 

center and residential fringe, and the City and the people. Future growth of the City 

should avoid significant barriers such as Highway 26.  

 

11.  Natural Areas - Our identity in the future will be also tied to our natural and open 

space areas linked by functional wildlife and recreational corridors, including 

McKay Creek, its tributaries Ghost Creek and the new Pumpkin Ridge Golf 

Courses.  

 

12.  Central Town Square - We will create a mixed use, urban density, pedestrian 

oriented, economic activity center, accessible by transit as well as rail, and 

exemplifying quality urban design with a small town flavor. 

 

13.  Conservation - We will be guardians of our natural, historical and cultural heritage, 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 84



7 
 

mindful of what we have inherited and equally mindful of what we have to 

contribute to the future. 

 

14.  Workable - Our vision shall be a model for the way we can manage our growth in 

practical and cost-effective ways so that we ensure we have a viable economic 

future while preserving our livability. 

 

15.  Continuity - We are committed to seeking and choosing the direction for our future 

through long-term planning while addressing the demands of the day.  

 

16.  Coordination - Successful management of our Comprehensive Plan and Vision 

Statement will require the cooperation and coordination of federal, state and 

regional agencies, county and city governments, and special districts.  

 

  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 84



8 
 

The Principles of New Urbanism 
 

The principles of New Urbanism can be applied increasingly to projects at the full range 
of scales from a single building to an entire community.  
 
1. Walkability 
-  Most things within a 10-minute walk of home and work 
-  Pedestrian friendly street design (buildings close to street; porches, windows & doors; 

tree-lined streets; on street parking; hidden parking lots; garages in rear lane; narrow, 
slow speed streets)  

-  Pedestrian streets free of cars in special cases 
 
2. Connectivity 
-  Interconnected street grid network disperses traffic & eases walking 
-  A hierarchy of narrow streets, boulevards, and alleys 
-  High quality pedestrian network and public realm makes walking pleasurable 

 
3. Mixed-Use & Diversity 
-  A mix of shops, offices, apartments, and homes on site. Mixed-use within 

neighborhoods, within blocks, and within buildings 
-  Diversity of people - of ages, income levels, cultures, and races  

 
4. Mixed Housing 
A range of types, sizes and prices in closer proximity  
 
5. Quality Architecture & Urban Design 
Emphasis on beauty, aesthetics, human comfort, and creating a sense of place; Special 
placement of civic uses and sites within community. Human scale architecture & 
beautiful surroundings nourish the human spirit 
 
6. Traditional Neighborhood Structure 
-  Discernable center and edge 
-  Public space at center 
-  Importance of quality public realm; public open space designed as civic art 
-  Contains a range of uses and densities within 10-minute walk 
-  Transect planning: Highest densities at town center; progressively less dense towards 

the edge.  The transect is an analytical system that conceptualizes mutually 
reinforcing elements, creating a series of specific natural habitats and/or urban 
lifestyle settings. The Transect integrates environmental methodology for habitat 
assessment with zoning methodology for community design. The professional 
boundary between the natural and man-made disappears, enabling environmentalists 
to assess the design of the human habitat and the urbanists to support the viability of 
nature. This urban-to-rural transect hierarchy has appropriate building and street 
types for each area along the continuum. 

 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 84



1 | P a g e  

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

AUGUST 1, 2014 

TO:  North Plains Planning Commission  

FROM:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update 

 

In February 2013, the Planning Commission held a work session to discuss the 

Comprehensive Plan (Plan).  At that time it was noted that City Ordinance and policies 

did not always align, and some aspects of Comprehensive Plan are in need of evaluation.   

 

The Plan was originally adopted in 1973.  At that time Glencoe High School was still on 

the drawing board and the City’s population was at 715 persons.  It has been updated 

numerous time with Ordinances adoptions (the significant changes are in bold), 47, 93, 

103, 115, 125, 140, 158, 165, 170 1988 Revision , 172, 195, 197, 200, 207, 216, 217, 224 

1993 Revision, 229, 237, 241, 242, 245, 269, 270 master plan documents, 288 2001 

revision, 300, 301 2002 Revision, 303 , 314, 320 Wetlands Assessment, 325 

Transportation Plan, 331, 335, 336, 339, 343, 344, 345 SNR Overlay, 346 TSP, 348 

Parks, 352 Water Master Plan, 360, 365, 403 Walking Trails Plan, Chapters 3, 4 and 5 of 

the Plan have not been updated since 1993.   

 

The 2002 revision projected land use needs through 2021 based on population of 4,000.  

Growth within the community has been slower than anticipated and the timeline for 

reaching 4,000 may be pushed back as far as 2030 based on historic norms.  The City is 

awaiting an official population projection to be prepared by Portland State University.  

After that is completed the City can look to set a time line for a 14 or 20 year land supply. 

 

A draft of revisions were prepared and submitted to the State Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD).  The stated purpose of the revision is to update 

information.  No comments were received from DLCD.  Notices were sent to all property 

owners in advance of the August 13, 2014 meeting date, and notice published in the 

newspaper.  Additionally, the City has published several articles in its monthly newsletter 

to advise residents that changes to the plan are being discussed.  

 

At this time the Planning Commission can review the draft, accept comments from the 

public, propose revisions and make a recommendation to the City Council for the 

amendment Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code.   

 

Below are highlights of the major areas of changes.  Attached are documents providing 

detailed information. 

 

Land Use Planning 15.02.020 

Population projections play an important role in determining the planning horizon for the 

Comprehensive Plan.  Growth has traditionally be projected at 4.5% annually.  

Historically the City has grown at rate of 3.7% per year.  Both projection numbers 

overestimated growth, when applied to 2000 census.  After the numbers are applied to the 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 84



2 | P a g e  

 

2010 census, and with significant housing starts in 2014 and 2015 the City’s population 

will not hit 4,000 until the mid 2020’s.  Demographers with Portland State University 

should be able to provide validated numbers in the coming year.  

 

 
 

Two Zone Proposals 

Two new comprehensive map zones are proposed: 

 

The first would be Downtown Transition Overlay that would support the change of 

residential and industrial areas on Commercial Street to downtown commercial.  By 

outlining a strategy for the growth of the downtown area, property owners can be 

prepared for transitions.  Easing the zone change process is essential to attract businesses 

to convert housing and warehouses to higher uses.  Areas proposed for the transition are 

shown below.   

 

 
 

Staff is proposing a Public Facility Zone (PF Zone) be created to replace the Community 

Service Overlay zone.  Presently, facilities like Jessie Mays Park and North Plains 

Elementary School are included in residential zones, with an overlay for Community 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 84



3 | P a g e  

 

Services. The total acreage for these facilities is counted with residential acreage 

available for development.  It is highly unlikely such public facilities would ever be 

redeveloped.  For example the School accounts for 13 acres or 14% of the land zoned 

R7.5, that is significant amount of property that cannot be developed to meet the 8.4 

DU/NA.  

 

A complete list of proposed changes to the PF zone is included in the Commission’s 

packet. 

 

Housing 15.02.020, 15.02.080 

At the heart of the Comprehensive Plan are the housing goals.  In general, the Plan strives 

for compact growth, and the ability to accommodate up to 4,000 residents by 2021.  The 

approved plan sets a goal of 1,600 housing units, assuming that the average household 

size in the North Plains remains about 2.5 persons per dwelling. 

 
Municipal Code Section 15.02.020 Land Use Planning states “Residential: The City’s 
goal is to achieve a mix of low density (40%), medium density (40%), and high density 
(20%) residential uses providing an average density of 8.4 units per acre.”  North Plains 
cannot achieve all of these goals by 2021.  There is insufficient land and an inadequate 
code to attain the 40/40/20 mix.  The 8.4 DU/NA can be achieved with a substantial 
increase in codes and dense development.  The 1,600 is likely to be met without any 
changes to the code or the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). 
 
The City has not successfully achieved the 40/40/20 mix.  In 2014, the housing mix is 

about 38% low, 31% medium and 30% high, excluding the few housing units in the 

commercial and industrial areas.  By 2015, if progress is made by developers to build out 

McKay Fields and Sunset Ridge Phase I (the east expansion area) the City will have 859 

dwelling units and the mix of housing will be about 26/40/33.  Mathematically and 

physically the 40/40/20 mix is not possible as the expansion area master plans are laid 

out.  The housing mix will likely evolve to 22/26/51%.  (This assumes the housing mix in 

the north is roughly the same as in the east.)  This will yield a citywide average of 6.8 

DU/AC.   

 

The potential additional housing in the high density R2.5 zone is a wild card as it can 

yield anywhere from a high of 17 DU/NA down to 7.26 DU/NA when maximum lot sizes 

are pursued.  A known project on the low end is Sunset Terrace which has lot sizes in 

excess of 4,000 square feet.  At this time staff is aware of one other proposal to develop 5 

acres with approximately 58 homes, which is above 8.4 DU/NA but well below 17 

DU/NA.  Zoning codes are written in a manner that allows meeting density goals, but 

nothing requires the property owner to meet a density goal.  (The exception is the 

Neighborhood Community zone which requires a density of 8.4 DU/NA.)  While most 

developers are likely to favor smaller lots not all will do so.  For the purpose of housing 

inventory completed for this update an average of 8 DU/NA was used. 

 

No minimum density per zone is proposed in the draft plan, but it may be something to 

consider as a strategy for meeting 1,600 DU goal is shaped.  If this was pursued, it would 

be practical to offer some flexibility around 8.4 DU/NA requirement in the NC zone.   

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 84



4 | P a g e  

 

 

Pursuing 8.4 DU/NA remains a goal in the revised plan, as the plan is still the concept 

through 2040.   

 

This revision does not propose an UGB change.  It does contemplate the direction of 

growth if should occur in the future.  Generally, only lands that are contiguous to the 

City’s existing boundaries should be considered.  Residential lands should be required to 

be contiguous to other residential lands.  The east expansion has created an isolated 

neighborhood separated from the City center and school, without pedestrian or bicycle 

access plans.  Correcting this deficiency should be high priority when the next UGB 

expansion is considered.   

 

Attached Housing 15.02.085.1.A.2 

The Plan states a strong preference for attached housing suggesting that 25% of new 

dwelling units should be attached housing.  Recent revisions to the zoning code make this 

goal unnecessary.  Lots can be as small as 2,500 square feet, and host housing that is 

similar in dimensions as attached housing.  The substantive difference to modifying this 

goal is that long term, the value of the detached housing will likely be higher than the 

attached, which improves assessed values in the community overall.  

 

  

Attached House on Pacific 

Lot Size 2,500 sq feet 

Distance between houses 6 ft 

Transportation Development Tax: $3,8275 

Detached House on Curtis 

Lot Size 2,500 sq feet 

Distance between houses 6 ft 

Transportation Development Tax: $6,249 

 

Multifamily Housing 
As of 2014 the City of North Plains has the following apartment facilities: 

 

 Location Units 

Senior Plaza 314th and Kaybern 33 

Kaybern Terrace 314th and Kaybern 14 

Highland Court Highland Court 30 

ShyLee Building Commercial St 1 

Red House Commercial St 4 

 TOTAL 82 

 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 84



5 | P a g e  

 

Of the existing apartment units, only 5 can be obtained without meeting criteria for age or 

income restrictions.  Effectively this makes it difficult for younger persons with ordinary 

earning capacity to obtain housing in North Plains.  

 

Some rental housing is available through duplexes, most of which can be found on 

Hillcrest Street.  Most duplexes have multiple bedrooms. 

 

Location 

10749 311th  

31120 Hillcrest 

31160 Hillcrest 

31188 Hillcrest 

31280/31290 Hillcrest 

10441/10445 313th 

31580 Cottage 

31710/31720 Wascoe 

 

Neither the approved master plan for the east expansion or conceptual plan for the north 

contains apartment or condominium housing.  There are 47 townhomes proposed in the 

east which have a 750 sq ft footprint.  Likewise it is anticipated a variety of townhouses 

and cluster homes will be developed in the north.  (Townhouses or rowhouses usually 

include ownership of the ground below the structure, and condominiums typically have 

ownership of property in common.  Cluster homes can be a townhouses or 

condominiums.)   

 

At this time no dwelling units are attributed to the mixed use areas within the expansion 

areas.  This will likely result in exceeding the 1,600 DU goal in the long run.  It is highly 

unlikely the 5 acres of mixed use land in the east will be developed without housing.  

There is no significant demand for commercial properties in North Plains, and the 

development of highway commercial properties is more likely than development on a 

more remote piece of West Union Road.  Even with the addition of 295 DU there is an 

insufficient population to support 5 acres of commercial development.   

 

Examples of mixed use house and retail facilities in Hillsboro and Portland are below.  

The building are between 3-4 stories tall and are designed the communities within which 

they were built.   

 

  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 84



6 | P a g e  

 

  
 

Unfortunately, the City’s Neighborhood Community zone provides only minimal 

guidance on standards for building mixed use facilities.  Adding a Mixed Use Zone 

chapter would be helpful in preparing for such development in the future.  Such a zone 

would facilitate the review of a master plan for the north area. 

 

It is possible the east master plan can be refined to meet housing goals and to provide 

more medium and low density housing.  For example if the mixed use could be 

developed with retail on a bottom floor and housing above, the need to build small lot 

houses and townhouse could be reduced from 74% of units to 50%.  This would still fall 

short of the 40/40/20 mix sought in the plan, but would lessen the overall percentage of 

small lots.  

 

Housing 
Type 

Master 
Plan 

  
Option 

1 
  

Option 
2 

  
Option 

3 
  

Large 20 10% 35 18% 55 29% 20 8% 

Medium 29 15% 51 27% 44 23% 98 41% 

Small 105 55% 40 21%   0%   0% 

Townhouse 37 19%   0%   0%   0% 

Mixed Use   0% 65 34% 92 48% 120 50% 

Total 191   191   191   238   
 

Since the City has developed codes for multifamily, manufactured homes and small lot 

developments 15.02.085.3.2 goal “The City will develop specific and enforceable design 

standards for multi-family, manufactured home and small lot developments.” is 

recommended to be removed.  

 

Transportation 15.02.101 

It is proposed that the Public Works Standards be separated from the Comprehensive 

Plan.   

 

 

 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 84



7 | P a g e  

 

Land Needs 15.02.140 

Until the City receives projections for population, it cannot estimate the future land needs 

for the community.  Staff is recommending that review be triggered by population and 

housing development in the interim.  

 

A simple map update of the direction of growth is proposed.  The blue area is needed to 

correct pedestrian and bicycle connectivity issues the yellow area represents lots 

immediately adjacent to existing boundaries, and the green are lots further out from first 

lots. (White is within the current UGB.) 

 

 
 

The City has received comments requesting that the area immediately south of Hwy 26 at 

Glencoe be considered for future commercial property.  A recent State action moved the 

rural reserve boundary north from Zion Church Road to Beach Road.  This means that 

under no circumstances will North Plains expand to the south of Beach Road.  The 

addition of commercial property adjacent to the Glencoe Interchange is likely to 

encourage economic growth in the community.   

 

Comprehensive Plan Map 

Below is the current version of the Comp Plan Map (Feature 2 is Low Density) 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 84



8 | P a g e  

 

 
 

Seventeen (17) changes were proposed with the notice sent to property owners in the 

Community.  An additional 8 were identified by the community and staff. 

 

Site 
Current 

Designation 
Comp Plan 

Map 
Zone Map 

1 . North Plains Elementary R7.5 Institutional Public Facility 

2. North Plains Christian/Yellow 
House 

COMM 
Institutional/ 
Public Facility 

Public Facility 

3. St Edward 1 R5 Institutional Public Facility 

4. Jessie Mays Park R5 Public Facility Public Facility 

5. Centurylink CO COMM Public Facility Public Facility 

6. Old West Union Open Space R7.5 Public Facility Public Facility 

7. City Hall/Library, Fire COMM Public Facility Public Facility 

8. New Life Church R5 Institutional Public Facility 

9. LaMordden Park R2.5 Public Facility Public Facility 

10. ODOT Open Space IND Public Facility Public Facility 

11. Galaway Park COMM Public Facility Public Facility 

12. Kaybern House R5 High Density R2.5 

13. Pacific Purple Park R5 Public Facility Public Facility 

14. Senior Plaza COMM High Density R2.5 

15. Cottage Pointe Subdivision R5 High Density R2.5 

16. Frank Wing Park/Water Tank IND Public Facility Public Facility 

17. Dant Russell IND Public Facility Public Facility 

  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 84



9 | P a g e  

 

Site 
Current 
Designation 

Comp Plan 
Map 

Zone Map 

18. Brown (1 lot) R5 Industrial Industrial 

19. Eggiman (1 lot) C2 High Density R2.5 

20. Cottage Pointe Open Space R5 Public Facility Public Facility 

21. St Edward 2 R5 Institutional Public Facility 

22. Louie Wentz Park R5 Public Facility Public Facility 

23.  CWS Lift Station IND Public Facility Public Facility 

24.  McKay Fields Open Space R2.5 Public Facility Public Facility 

25. Hillcrest (3 lots) C1 High Density R2.5 

 

Below is the Comprehensive Plan with the proposed changes.  

 
 

If the Comprehensive Plan changes are approved they can be incorporated in the zoning 

map.   

 

Flood Plain Construction 

The proposed draft strengthens the City’s policy regarding construction in the flood plain, 

and explicitly prohibits it.  

 

Related Code Amendments 

Related code amendments have been discussed by the Planning Commission previously.  

Many of these are needed to implement the proposed changes in the Comprehensive Plan.  

Some additional changes may be needed in the future. 

 

16.05 Definitions has been refined to add more definitions and more clarity. 

 

16.60 Community Service Overlay District is eliminated in the draft proposal in favor of 

public facility zone 

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 84



10 | P a g e  

 

 

16.125 Lot Standards has several changes: 

 Set backs reflect other parts of code 

 Addresses alley access for easements 

 Refers to Public Works Standards 

 Street tree minimum of 1/lot 

 

16.140 Planned Use Developments has been revised to make the process more accessible 

in all zones.  This will allow the development of some awkward but relatively small lots, 

which cannot be developed without numerous variances. 

 

16.170 Application process has some revisions to improve review of applications, 

including adding minor subdivision modification as Type 2 review, and at the request of 

staff additional language to make Final Plats a Type 2 application that requires public 

notice, but not a Planning Commission review.  

 

16.205 Annexations includes an expanded outreach process.  Improving outreach will be 

essential to facilitating the next annexations that may be proposed as soon as 2015. 

 

Additionally a Public Faculties draft ordinance has been prepared. 

 

Recommendation:  The Planning Commission accept public comments on the draft 

revisions and consider amendments to the revisions.  

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 84



___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 84



Zoned Acreage

Current 

Zone Current

Gross 

Acres Rezone Acres

R7.5 North Ave 94.4

PF 14.4 NP Elementary

PF 1.28 OWU Open Space

R7.5 REMAINING ACREAGE 78.72 PF 15.68

R7.5 313th Low Density 7.89

R5 Wascoe Medium Density 19

PF 2.78 Jessie Mays

PF 0.69 St Edward 2

PF 2.69 St Edward 1

R5 REMAINING ACREAGE 12.84 PF 6.16

R5 Central Residential 66.8

PF 1.52 Cottage Point Open Space

PF 0.51 New life

PF 0.3 Louie Wentz

R2.5 4.49 Cottage Pointe

R2.5 0.14 Island

R5 REMAINING ACREAGE 59.84 PF 2.33

R2.5 4.63

R5 Sunset Terrace 18

PF 3.63 Terrace Open Space

PF 3.63

R5 REMAINING ACREAGE 14.37

R2.5 McKay Creek 41.2

PF 3.84 McKay Creek

PF 0.12 LaMordden

R2.5 REMAINING ACREAGE 37.24 PF 3.96

R2.5 Hillcrest High Density 4.76

M1 0.22 Brown

R2.5 REMAINING ACREAGE 4.54 M1 0.22

R2.5 Highland High Density 7.23

R2.5 Meadow  19.2

R2.5 Vanderzanden 1.72

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 84



NC Sunset Ridge 72.6

NC North Expansion 76.52

C2 Centurylink 0.68

PF 0.68

C2 0 PF 0.68

C2 Glencoe 50.1

PF 2.98 Galaway

R2.5 3.74 Eggiman

C2 REMAINING ACREAGE 43.38 PF 2.98

R2.5 3.74

C1 Downtown 14.7

PF 2.28 Civic Center

PF 0.31 Yellow House

R2.5 0.55 Hillcrest

PF 1.31 NP christian

R2.5 0.69 Senior Plaza

C1 REMAINING ACREAGE 9.56 PF 3.9

R2.5 1.24

M2 Vandyke 7.49

M1 Valley Machine 8

PF 3.13 ODOT Open Space

PF 0.22 CWS Lift Station

M1 REMAINING ACREAGE 4.65 PF 3.35

M1 Gonzales 11.9

PF 1.31 Frank wing/water tank

M1 REMAINING ACREAGE 10.59 PF 1.31

M2 Industrial East 81.1

M2 Central industrial 63.5

PF 9.52 Dant Russell

M2 REMAINING ACREAGE 53.98 PF 9.52

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 84



Chapter 16.20 
ZONING DISTRICT R-7.5 

 
16.20.000 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the R7.5 District is to provide for the development of single family uses 

and limited multi-family residential uses, and to implement the housing policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
16.20.005  Permitted Uses  

 
Permitted uses subject to the requirements of Design Review in this chapter, if applicable.  

Refer to Zoning Code Use Table. 
 

A. Accessory Dwellings, Subject to Chapter 16.105, Accessory Uses,  Structures & 
Dwellings    

B. Accessory Structures related to residential uses, Subject to Chapter 16.105, 
Accessory Uses,  Structures & Dwellings    

C. Child Care, Certified Home  

D. Child Care, Registered Home  

E. Home occupations, subject to Chapter 16.85, Home Occupations  

F. Manufactured Homes, Subject to Chapter 16.110, Manufactured Homes 

G. Planned Unit Development, Subject to Chapter 16.140, Planned Unit Development 

H. Residential Home  

I. Single family detached dwelling 

 
16. 20.010 Conditional Uses  

 
Subject to the requirements of Design Review section of this chapter, if applicable. Refer 

to Chapter 16.15, Zoning Code Use Table. 
 
The following uses and their accessory structures may be permitted in the R7.5 District 
when authorized by the Planning Commission pursuant to Conditional Use Permit section 
of this chapter. 
 

A. Child Care, Certified Center  

B. Civic /Governmental use 

C. Educational Facility  

D. Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 167 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 84



E. Fraternal Lodge 

F. Places of Worship 

G. Utility Facilities  

 
16. 20.015 Dimensional Standards 

 
The following dimensional standards shall be the minimum requirements for all 
development in the R7.5 District except for modifications permitted under Lot,  Building, 
& Yard Exceptions or Planned Unit Development sections of this chapter.  In addition, a 
minor adjustment of up to 10% of the required setback, area, lot size, lot depth or lot 
width may be granted by the City pursuant to Variance Review section of this chapter.  

 
A. Lot/Parcel Size  

 
1. Single family detached dwelling: 7,500 square feet minimum lot/parcel size  

2.1. A
ll other uses: 7,500 square feet 

3.2. 9
,000 square feet maximum for lots created by subdivision.Subdivisions 
greater than 10 acres must average a minimum of 4 dwelling units per net 
acre 

  
B. Lot/Parcel Depth and Width 

 
1. The minimum average lot width shall be 60 feet. 

2. The minimum lot depth shall be 80 feet. 

 
C. Minimum Setback Requirements 

 
1. Principle structures, accessory dwellings, and accessory structures with a 

floor area greater than 200 square feet shall maintain the following minimum 
yard setbacks. except that development on flag lots shall be subject to the 
setback standards of 16.125.010. 

2. Front Yard (Principle structure) 20 feet 

3. Garages, carports, accessory dwellings and accessory structures shall be 
flush with, or recessed behind,  the front building elevation of the principle 
structure. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 168 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 84



4. Rear Yard: 

a. 10 feet for street-access lots  
b. 6 feet for alley-access lots 

c. 5 feet for Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings  

c.  

 
5. Side Yard: 

 
a. Interior 5 feet  

 
b. Adjacent to street 10 feet plus additional necessary to comply with 

the standards of Clear Vision Areas section of this chapter. 
 

c. Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings: 5 foot Side Yard 

(adjacent to street) setback, except as provded for in 16.105. 
c.  

d. Flag Lots approved 10 feet for all yards, except pursuant to 16.125.010, that the yard 
facing the garage door shall be a minimum of 20 feet, except as 

otherwise provided in this chapter. 
  

D. Height of Buildings 
 

Buildings shall not exceed a height, measured from grade, of 35 feet.  Accessory 
dwellings and accessory structures shall not exceed 25 feet.  

  
E. Lot/Parcel Coverage 

 
In the R7.5 District, the maximum impervious surface  coverage shall not exceed 
sixty five (65) percent of the total area of any lot. 
 

F. Flag Lots  
 
Flag lots are subject to the standards set forth in Chapter 16.125.010.C.  

 
 
 
16. 20.020 Parking Requirements 

 
At least two (2) off-street parking spaces shall be provided for each single family 
detached dwelling unit.  Parking requirements for all other uses are specified in the Off 
Street Parking and Loading section of this chapter. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 169 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 84



 
16. 20.025 Development Standards 

 
The following standards will be applied to all single family dwellings (site-built, modular 
and manufactured homes) to be constructed or located in the City of North Plains: 

  
A. All single family units shall utilize at least two of the following design features to 

provide visual relief along the front of the home: 
 

  1. dormers; 

  2. gables; 

  3. recessed entries; 

  4. covered porch entries; 

  5. cupolas; 

  6. pillars or posts; 

  7. bay or bow windows; 

  8. eaves (minimum 6" projection); 

  9. offsets on building face or roof (minimums 16"); 
 

B. All manufactured homes shall also comply with the requirements of Chapter 
16.100, Manufactured Homes. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 170 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 84



Chapter 16.25 
HOW LAND MAY BE USED AND DEVELOPED 

ZONING DISTRICT R-5 
 

16.25.000 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the R5 District is to provide for the development of single family residential 
uses and limited multi-family residential uses, and to implement the housing policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
16.25.005  Permitted Uses 
 

Permitted Uses subject to the requirements of the Design Review section of this 
chapter, if applicable. Refer to Zoning Code Use Table    
  

A. Accessory Dwellings, Subject to Chapter 16.105, Accessory Uses, Structures, & 
Dwellings    

B. Accessory Structures related to residential uses, Subject to Chapter 16.105, 
Accessory Uses, Structures, & Dwellings  

C. Child Care, Certified Home 

D. Child Care, Registered Home  

E. Duplex dwellings, Subject to Chapter 16.105, Duplex, Triplex, and Attached 
Single Family Dwellings 

F. Home occupations, subject to Chapter 16.85, Home Occupations 

G. Manufactured Homes, Subject to Chapter 16.110, Manufactured Homes 

H. Manufactured Home Parks, Subject to Chapter 16.110, Manufactured Homes  

I. Planned Unit Development, Subject to Chapter 16.140, Planned Unit 
Development 

J. Residential Home  

K. Single family attached homes/row houses. Subject to Chapter 16.100, Duplex, 
Triplex, and Attached Single Family Dwelling 

L. Single family detached dwelling 

 
16.25.010 Conditional Uses 

 
Conditional uses are subject to the requirements of the Design Review section of this 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 171 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 84



chapter, if applicable.  Refer to Zoning Code Use Table. 
 
The following uses and their accessory structures may be permitted in the R.5 District 
when authorized by the Planning Commission pursuant to Conditional Use Permit section 
of this chapter. 
  

A. Bed & Breakfast  

B. Child Care, Certified Center 

C. Civic /Governmental Use 

D. Educational Facility 

E. Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home 

F. Fraternal Lodge 

G. Places of Worship 

H. Utility Facilities 
 
16.25.015 Dimensional Standards 

 
The following dimensional standards are the minimum requirements for all development 
in the R5 District except for modifications permitted under the Lot, Building, & Yard 
Exceptions or Planned Unit Development sections of this chapter.  In addition, a minor 
adjustment of up to 10% of the required setback, area, lot size, lot depth or lot width may 
be granted by the City.  For land within the city limits of the City of North Plains as of July 

1, 2004, a minor adjustment of up to 10% of the lot size may be granted by the City 
pursuant to the Variance Review section of this chapter. 
  

A. Lot/Parcel Size  

 
1. Single family detached dwelling - 5,000 square feet minimum 

 

 Within a Planned Unit development - 4,000 square feet minimum  
 

 Lots created by Subdivision - 6,000 square feet maximum 
     

2. Two family dwelling (duplex), triplex & attached single family dwelling - 45,000 
square feet minimum per unit 

 
3. All other uses - 5,000 square feet minimum  

 
3.4. Lots created by Subdivision shall have a 7,500 square feet maximum 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 172 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 84



B. Lot/Parcel Depth and Width 

 
1. The minimum average lot width shall be 40 feet, except that lots for attached 

single family dwellings may have a minimum average lot width of 25 feet. 
 

2. The minimum lot depth shall be 80 feet. 
 

C. Minimum Setback Requirements 

 
Principle structures, accessory dwellings accessory structures with a floor area 
greater than 200 square feet shall maintain the following minimum yard 
setbacks except that development on flag lots shall be subject to the setback 
standards of 16.125.010(C): 

 
1. Front Yard 

 

 Garage - 20 feet  
 

 All other structures - 15 feet 
 

With alley access garages, carports, accessory dwellings and accessory 
structures shall be flush with, or recessed behind, the front building elevation 
of the principle structure. 

 
2. Rear Yard 

 

 Street-access lots - 10 feet  

 Alley-access lots - 6 feet  

 Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings - 5 feet   

3. Side Yard 

 

 Interior – 5 feet  

 adjacent to street - 10 feet plus additional necessary to comply with the 
standards of the Clear Vision Areas section of this chapter 

 

 Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings: 5 foot Side Yard (adjacent 
to street) setback, except as provided in the Accessory Uses Structures 
and Dwellings section of this chapter. 

   
4. Flag Lots  

 
All yards shall have setbacks of 10 feet, except that the yard facing the 
garage shall be a minimum of 20 feet.Flag lots are subject to the standards 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 173 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 84



set forth in Chapter 16.125.010.C.  
 

5. Height of Buildings 

 
Buildings shall not exceed a height, measured from grade, of 35 feet. 
Accessory dwellings and accessory structures shall not exceed 25 feet.  

 
6. Lot/Parcel Coverage 

 
In the R5 District, the maximum impervious surface lot coverage shall not 
exceed 65% the following percentage of the total area of any lot. 

 

 Single family detached dwellings - 65% 
 

 Duplexes, triplexes and single family attached dwellings - 65% 
 

 Non-residential uses - 65% 
   
 
16.25.020 Parking Requirements 

 
At least two (2) off-street parking spaces shall be provided for each single family 
detached dwelling unit.  Parking requirements for all other uses are specified in Off 
Street Parking and Loading of this chapter. 
 
16.25.025 Development Standards 

  
A. The following standards will be applied to all single family dwellings (site-built, 

modular and manufactured homes) to be constructed or located in the City of 
North Plains: 

 
All single family units shall utilize at least two of the following design features to 
provide visual relief along the front of the home: 

1. dormers;  

2. gables; 

3. recessed entries; 

4. covered porch entries; 

5. cupolas; 

6. pillars or posts; 

7. bay or bow windows; 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 174 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 84



8. eaves (minimum 6" projection); 

9. offsets on building face or roof (minimums 16"); 
 

B. All manufactured homes shall also comply with the requirements of the 
Manufactured Homes section of this chapter. 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 175 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 84



Chapter 16.30 
ZONING DISTRICT R-2.5 

 
16.30.000 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the R2.5 District is to provide for the development of multi-familyhigh 
density housing, and to implement the housing policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
16.30.005 Permitted Uses 
 

Permitted uses are subject to the requirements of the Design Review section of this 
chapter, if applicable. Refer to Zoning Code Use Table.  
  

A. Accessory Dwellings, Subject to Chapter 16.105, Accessory Uses, Structures & 
Dwellings    

B. Accessory Structures related to residential uses, Subject to Chapter 16.105, 
Accessory Uses, Structures, & Dwellings   

C. Child Care, Certified Home 

D. Child Care, Registered Home  

E. Duplexes, Subject to Chapter 16.100, Duplex, Triplex, and Attached Single Family 
Dwellings 

F. Home occupations, Subject to Chapter 16.85, Home Occupations 

G. Manufactured Homes, Subject to Chapter 16.110, Manufactured Homes 

H. Manufactured Home Parks, Subject to Chapter 16.110, Manufactured Homes  

I. Multi-family dwellings, Subject to Chapter 16.175 Multi-Family Dwelling(s)Section 
and Chapter 16.100, Duplex, Triplex, and Attached Single Family Dwelling 

J. Planned Unit Development, Subject to Chapter 16.140, Planned Unit Development 

K. Residential Facility 

L. Residential Homes 

M. Single family attached homes row houses, 4 units. Subject to Chapter 16.100, 
Duplex, Triplex, and Attached Single Family Dwellings 

N. Single family detached dwelling 

O. Townhomes/condominiums, subject to Subject to Chapter 16.175, Multi-Family 
Dwelling(s) Section and Chapter 16.100, Duplex, Triplex, and Attached Single 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 176 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 84



Family Dwelling 

P. Triplexes, Subject to Chapter 16.100, Duplex, Triplex, and Attached Single Family 
Dwelling  

 
 
16.30.010 Conditional Uses 

Conditional uses are subject to the requirements of the Design Review of this chapter, if 
applicable. Refer to Zoning Code Use Table. 
 
The following uses and their accessory structures may be permitted in the R2.5 District 
when authorized by the Planning Commission pursuant to Conditional Use Permit. 
  

A. Bed & Breakfast  

B. Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home 

C. Child Care, Certified Center  

D. Civic /Governmental Use 

E. Educational Facility  

F. Places of Worship 

G. Fraternal Lodge 

H. Utility Facilities 

 
16.30.015 Dimensional Standards 

 
The following dimensional standards shall be the minimum requirements for all 
development in the R 2.5 District except for modifications permitted under Lot, Building, 
& Yard Exceptions or Planned Unit Development sections of this chapter.  In addition, a 
minor adjustment of up to 10% of the required setback, area, lot size, lot depth or lot width 
may be granted by the City pursuant to Variance section of this chapter provided the 
adjustment complies with administrative variance review criteria.. 
 

A. Lot/Parcel Size  

 

1. Lots created by subdivision shall have a maximum: 6,000 square feet 
maximum lot size of 6,000 per dwelling unit  
 

2. Single-family dwelling shall have a : 2,5004,000 square feet minimum  
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 177 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 84



3. Two-family dwelling (duplexes),Triplexes & attached single family dwellings: 
2,5004,000 square feet per unit minimum lot size   

 

4. Multi-family dwelling developments (greater than 3 units):410,000 square 
feet minimum foot lot; 

 

5. All other uses 4,000 square feet minimum 
 

B. Lot/Parcel Depth and Width 

 

 No minimum lot width or depth. 
 

C. Setback Requirements 

 
Principle structures, accessory dwellings and accessory structures with a floor 
area greater than 200 square feet shall maintain the following minimum yard 
setbacks except that development on flag lots shall be subject to the setback 
standards for Flag Lots. 

 
D. Front Yard: 

 For all structures: 10 feet  
 

 Garage: 20 feet 
 

Garages, carports, accessory dwellings and accessory structures shall be flush 
with, or recessed behind, the front building elevation of the principle structure. 

    
E. Rear Yard: 

 

 street-access lots 10 feet 
 

 alley-access lots 6 feet 
 

 Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings 5 feet 
 

F. Side Yard: 
 

 Side yards should be established to create separation between structures and 
meet fire codes and provide space for pervious surface area  

 Single family dwellings created by subdivision must have at least one side 
yard 

 Adjacent to street - 10 feet plus additional space necessary to comply with the 
standards of Clear Vision Areas section of this chapter.  

 Accessory Structures and Accessory Dwellings - 5 foot Adjacent to street 
setback, except as provided for in the Accessory Use, Structures and 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 178 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 84



Dwellings section of this chapter. 
 

G. Flag lots approved:  

 
10 feet for all yards, except pursuant to that the yard facing the garage shall be a 
minimum of 20 feet.Flag lots are subject to Chapter 16.125 Lot Development 
Standards.  

 
H. Height of Buildings 

 
Buildings shall not exceed a height, measured from grade, of 35 feet. Accessory 
dwellings and accessory structures shall not exceed 25 feet.  

 
I. Lot/Parcel Coverage 

 
In the R2.5 District, the maximum lot coverage for impervious surfaces shall not 
exceed 65%  

 
16.30.020 Parking Requirements 

 
Parking requirements are specified in Chapter 16.155 Off Street Parking and Loading. 
 
 
16.30.025 Development Standards 

 
The following standards will be applied to all single family dwellings (site-built, modular 
and manufactured homes) to be constructed or located in the City of North Plains: 
 

A. All units shall utilize at least two of the following design features to provide visual 
relief along the front of the home: 

 
A. dormers;  

B. gables; 

C. recessed entries; 

D. covered porch entries; 

E. cupolas; 

F. pillars or posts; 

G. bay or bow windows; 

H. eaves (minimum 6" projection); 

I. offsets on building face or roof (minimums 16"); 

 
B. All manufactured homes shall also comply with the requirements of the 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 179 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 84



Manufactured Homes section of this chapter. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 180 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 84



Mixed Use Neighborhood District 
I. PURPOSE 
  
Mixed Use Neighborhood District implements the city’s Comprehensive Plan with high pedestrian 
accessibility. The North Plains Comprehensive Plan map designates specific areas for mixed use 
under the MU Mixed Use Plan designation.  
 
The overall purpose of the district is to create and enhance urban neighborhoods with a variety 
of intermixing of uses that complement the established surrounding communities. In order to 
accomplish these purposes, the mixed use district permit commercial, residential, and multiple 
use developments. Mixed uses may occur vertically or horizontally. The district also include 
design requirements to create active pedestrian amenities.  The land use district is designed to 
for lively, prosperous neighborhoods that serve as attractive places to live, work, shop, and 
recreate. 
 
The Mixed Use - Neighborhood District is designed to provide for a mix of small to medium 
scale residential uses, with minor emphasis on commercial uses. Development objectives for 
the MU-N District are: 
 

1. Allow for different types of compatible land uses close together in appropriate locations 
to shorten transportation trips and facilitate multi-modal development. 

2. Encourage infill and redevelopment of commercial, residential and mixed use 
development within surrounding uses. 

3. Allow flexibility in development standards to recognize the challenge of developing 
small scale mixed use buildings that are a similar scale to surrounding residential 
development.  

4. Limit the size of any one commercial retail use to keep the scale of commercial activity 
appropriate to the surrounding area.  

5. Support the street system and the existing street grid patterns through redevelopment 
and land divisions as much as possible, or use street plans as appropriate.  

 
II.   PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL USES 
  
A.  Use Table 
Land uses listed in Table 1 below shall be allowed, conditionally allowed or not permitted. The 
listed uses may be further restricted by other subsections of this Section and other applicable 
standards throughout the Municipal Code. 
  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 181 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 84



 

Table-1 
Land Uses 

P: Use Permitted Outright        C: Conditional Use             N: Not Permitted 

Use Mixed Use 

Residential Uses   

  Residential Facilities P 

  Single Family Detached Housing P 

  Single Family Attached Housing P 

  Townhouse and Rowhouse P 

  Home Occupation P 

  Garden Apartment P 

  Mid-Rise Apartments P 

  Multi-Family Dwelling P 

  Bed and Breakfast P 

Mixed Use Building or Development  P 

Public/Institutional Uses   

  Community Service C 

  Health Clinic/Medical Offices C 

  Religious Institutions C 

  Geriatric Care Facilities 
 -- Up to 50 patients 
 -- 50 or more patients 

 
P 
C 

  Utility Substation or Pumping Station C 

  Radio and Transmission Towers N 

  Permanent Open Space P 

  Public Parks and Recreational Facilities P 

Commercial Uses   

  Neighborhood Commercial and Cottage Industry  P 

  Commercial Uses P/C1 

  Automobile Sales N 

  Hotels and Residential Hotels C 

  Drive Through Facilities N 

  General Office P 

  Retail P 

  Automobile Service Station N 

  Motor Vehicle Servicing or Repair 5 N 

  Small Appliance Repair and Service Shops P 

 
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 182 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 84



III.   DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
A.   Purpose 
 
This Section establishes clear and objective development standards with which all uses permitted 
in Mixed Use Districts shall comply. In the Mixed Use Districts site development standards are 
used to encourage urban development with pedestrian character.  Site development standards 
include minimum and maximum setbacks; these create a street with a walkable character. In the 
mixed use districts, buildings must be close to the street to create a vibrant pedestrian 
environment, slow traffic down, provide a visually interesting character to the street, and 
encourage walking. The setback standards encourage public spaces between sidewalks and 
building entrances (e.g., extra-wide sidewalks, plazas, squares, outdoor dining areas, and pocket 
parks).  
 

Table 2 
Development Standards 

 Development Standard Mixed Use District 

 

Minimum Mixed Use or Residential 
Development Density  

If housing is a part of a mixed use development, 
dwellings are permitted on and above the 
second floor of commercial uses with no 

minimum density 
Freestanding residential buildings are allowed 
at a minimum density of 8 dwelling units per 
net residential acre on lots fronting local or 
collector streets or 12 dwelling units per net 

acre on lots fronting arterial streets 

Maximum Mixed Use or Residential 
Development Density 

11 dwelling units per net residential acre on 
lots fronting local or collector streets or 

24 dwelling units per net residential acre on 
lots fronting arterial streets, either in free-

standing residential buildings or in mixed use 
buildings on and above the second floor 

Street Level Uses A minimum of 40% of each street frontage at 
street level of residential development projects 

with street frontage on arterial or collector 
streets shall be occupied by street level uses, 
with the remaining street frontage at street 

level containing residential uses and/or 
pedestrian or vehicular entries 

Lot size No lot size restrictions 

Minimum Lot Frontage 18 feet 

Maximum Building Footprint 15,000 square feet  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 183 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 84



Up to 40,000 square feet may be permitted for 
buildings where structured parking is 
integrated into the building envelope 

Maximum Occupant on First Floor 10,000 square feet 
Up to 40,000 square feet may be permitted for 

buildings where structured parking is 
integrated into the building envelope 

Setbacks  

Minimum (front) based on type of 
development 

Residential – 10 feet 
Mixed Use – 0 feet 

Commercial/Other – 0 feet 

Maximum (front) 20 feet 

Minimum (side and rear) 5 feet 
0 feet on common wall for attached residential 

or commercial development 

Height  

Minimum 1 story 

Maximum 40 ft 
Increases in the building height may be 

permitted for buildings where structured 
parking is integrated into the building envelope 

Off Street Parking and Loading  

Minimum Per Section III.I.3 

Maximum Per Section III.I.4 

Useable Open Space 100 square feet per 
dwelling unit 

 
B.  Building Efficiency 
Large buildings typical of Mixed Use district are required to meet a higher standard for 
conservation of environmental resources. 
 

Table 3 
Development Standards in the Mixed Use District 

Public Benefit Development Standards Requirement 

 

Water Efficiency: 
Reduce water usage 

 Harvest rainwater: (collect, store with sediment 
filtration) and use for irrigation, especially during 
summer drought periods. 

 Use efficient irrigation systems: install high 
efficiency drip irrigation systems. 

Use at least 3 
techniques 
throughout the 
project 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 184 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 84



 Use native and drought-tolerant plants and trees 
for landscaping.  Limit lawn to play and 
recreational areas. 

 Use water conserving plumbing fixtures: 1.6 gpf 
(gallons per flush) toilets or dual-flush toilets; 1.0 
gpf urinals or waterless type; 2.0 gpm (gallons per 
minute) showerheads or better. 

 Install water conserving or energy efficient 
appliances: refrigerators, washing machines, 
dishwashers, and water heating systems in all 
dwelling units and for non-residential uses. 

Energy Efficiency: 
Reduce energy 
usage 

 Design buildings to maximize natural ventilation 
(air circulation and cooling) and solar access (solar 
water heating potential and day-lighting 
opportunities). 

 Install energy-efficient (glazing), operable 
windows. 

 Use energy-efficient lighting: for example, specify 
and install efficient outdoor lighting (30 lumens 
per watt or better, with low temperature ballasts), 
install lamps with automated controls (including 
but not limited to photo sensors, timers and 
motion control sensors), provide solar lighting for 
walkways or outdoor area lighting. 

 Centrally locate heating/cooling systems to reduce 
the size of the distribution system. 

 Document building envelope improvements of at 
least 10% beyond code. 

 Flash and seal all penetrations between interior 
spaces and outside.  Seal all penetrations for 
ducting, wiring, plumbing, lights and fans. 

 Use cool roofs or eco roofs for all buildings 
 Use alternative heating systems such as ground-

source heat pumps, radiant heating, on-demand 
water heaters, solar heating, etc. 

Use at least 5 
techniques 
throughout the 
project 

Storm Water 
Management: 
Reduce 
contaminants 
from  storm water 
runoff from hard 
surfaces, improve 
infiltration, and 

 Use eco roofs and roof gardens for the majority of 
building roofs. 

 Use pervious paving for parking areas, walkways, 
etc. 

 Use infiltration planters 
 Use flow-through planters 
 Use rain water gardens 
 Minimize impervious surfaces 

Use at least 3 
techniques 
throughout the 
project 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 185 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 84



potentially reduce 
and/or eliminate 
provision of water 
quality treatment or 
detention facilities 

Green Building 
Materials: 
Improve indoor air 
quality 

 Use recycled-content building materials, where 
practicable 

 Use locally made or harvested materials and 
products, such as wheat board 

 Use certified or recycled wood 
 Use low- or no-VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds), 

low-toxic interior paint and water-based finishes 
and stains 

 Use formaldehyde-free carpet, cabinets and 
insulation 

 Use low-VOC, low-toxic, water-based, solvent-free 
adhesives, caulks, grouts, mortars, and sealants 
inside the building 

 Use longer life cycle materials (durable and 
recyclable roofing and siding) 

 Limit use of carpet to one-third of unit’s square 
footage, use low pile or less allergen-attracting 
carpet, and install carpet by tacking (no glue) 

Use at least 4 
techniques 
throughout the 
project 

Noise and Privacy: 
Reduce external and 
interior noise and 
enhance privacy 

 Use enhanced landscaping to buffer sound 
 Use water features to mask sound 
 Provide intervening internal streets and sidewalks 

to buffer activity and noise 
 Locate bedrooms and/or quiet rooms away from 

noise sources 
 Insulate activity rooms 
 Provide sound-rated walls, floors and sound-

absorbing materials on the building exterior 
 Locate shared community and/or commercial 

spaces on the first floor 
 Define and screen the edges of the development 

through the location of buildings, vegetation, 
building elevations, or materials changes, fencing, 
porches, stoops, etc. 

Use at least 4 
techniques 
throughout the 
project 

Housing with age- 
or disability-friendly 
features that allow 
“Visitability” 

Provide the specified percentage within dwelling 
units: 
 An entrance without a step or threshold (zero-

step): that is from an accessible path of travel 
from the street, sidewalk or driveway.  An 

20% of all dwelling 
units 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 186 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 84



accessible path of travel has no steps, is at least 
36-inches wide and is not steeper than 1:20 (5% 
grade) for walkways or 1:12 for ramps. 

 Through the ground floor of the unit provide: 32-
inch clear opening doorways and hallways that 
have at least 36-inches of clear width. 

 Provide at least a half bath on the ground floor of 
the unit: of sufficient depth within the bathroom 
for a person in a wheelchair to enter and close the 
door. 

Public Places 
Provide gathering 
places for social 
interaction among 
residents, 
employees, and 
visitors which are 
neither “home” nor 
“work”, within the 
development 
project. 

The following forms can be used individually or in 
combination, if it can be demonstrated that a 
Community need(s) is being met: 
 Multi-purpose space (consisting of interior 

community rooms/spaces or outdoor spaces): 
Interior community rooms/spaces consist of 
rooms/spaces where a variety of uses such as 
computer use, dance, exercise, martial arts, yoga, 
continuing education, arts and crafts classes, and 
community meeting space could be accommodated. 
Outdoor spaces consist of plazas, paved areas or 
courtyards, etc., where a variety of activities could be 
accommodated. 
 Shared open space: community gardens, walking 

trails and viewpoints if located next to a natural 
area. 

Establish 2 
different types of 

public places 

 
C.  Street Level Uses 
The frontage of any exterior outdoor common recreation area required for residential uses shall 
not be counted in street frontage. The intent of these standards is to establish vertical mixed use 
developments, with commercial storefronts and create a vibrant pedestrian environment with 
plazas, ground-level public open spaces, etc. Required street-level uses shall meet the standards 
of this Section. 
 

1. The following uses qualify as required street level uses: 
 

a) Commercial uses, such as personal, business and consumer services, daycare for 
children and elderly, entertainment, art galleries, product repair or services for 
consumer and business goods, small scale physical fitness studios/gyms (that serve the 
neighborhood), and medical (medical, dental and veterinarian clinics); 

b) Eating and drinking establishments; 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 187 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 84



c) Community service uses, such as libraries, senior centers, community centers, museums 
and indoor public recreation facilities; 

d) Public places, open space areas and transit stops with shelters. 

2.  In order to allow for the provision of required street level uses within buildings with 
frontage on arterial or collector streets, when market factors are not conducive to mixed 
use development projects, the ground floor level of buildings shall be constructed to allow 
for the future accommodation of commercial uses, and may be occupied by residential 
uses. The property owner or leasing agent or property manager shall provide the Planning 
Director with annual market reports that provide documentation of the status of the 
market, where it can be determined when these spaces should be actively advertised for 
sale or lease, so that conversion to these uses can occur. 

3  The space occupied by the required street level uses must have a minimum floor to floor 
height of thirteen (13) feet and extend at least thirty (30 feet) in depth at street level from 
the street front façade. 

4.   Required street level uses must be located within ten (10) feet of the street property line 
or abut a public open space permitted in subsection 1(d), unless an increase in the 
maximum front setback is granted by the Planning Director subject to the requirements 
in Section III.F.4.b. 

5.  Pedestrian access to the required street level uses shall be provided directly from the 
street or permitted public open space. Pedestrian entrances must be located no more 
than three (3) feet above or below sidewalk grade or at the same elevation as the abutting 
permitted public open space.  

D.  Lot size 

There is no minimum lot size in the Mixed Use Districts.  

E.  Maximum Building Footprint 

The maximum building footprint standard for the Mixed Use District is shown in Table 2. An 
increase in the maximum building footprint up to 40,000 square feet may be permitted for 
buildings where structured parking is integrated into the building envelope, provided that: 

1. The design of the building with integrated structured parking complies with the 
development standards contained in Section III.I for off-street parking and the design 
standards contained in Section IV.5, for location and design of off-street parking including 
structured parking. 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 188 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 84



2. The design of the building complies with the design standards contained in Section IV, 
that address building facade, building step-back and architectural design requirements. 

 
F.  Setbacks 
Minimum setbacks are intended to ensure new construction occurs in a manner consistent with 
applicable building code, public utility easement or public open space requirements. Required 
maximum building setbacks are intended to complement applicable standards as a means for 
ensuring the placement of buildings to promote an attractive streetscape and pleasant 
pedestrian environment. 
 

1. Front Yard Setbacks. 
 

a) Minimum Setback. The minimum front setbacks are shown in Table 2.  

b) Maximum Setback. The maximum front setbacks are shown in Table 2.  The maximum 
setback standard for commercial, multi-family, apartment, or mixed use buildings is 
met when a minimum of 75 percent of the front building façade is located no farther 
from the property line or future right-of-way lines than the maximum setback 
specified for the applicable Mixed Use District or as specified in Section III.F.4.  The 
maximum setback standard for single family attached and detached housing, 
townhouses, and rowhouses is met when at least one façade, including a porch, is 
located no farther from the property line than the setback specified for the applicable 
Mixed Use District.   

 
2. Rear Yard Minimum Setback. The minimum rear setback for all structures is shown in 

Table 2.  
 

3. Side Yard Minimum Setback: The minimum side yard setback for all structures in the 
Mixed Use Districts is shown in Table 2.  
 

4. Setback Exceptions.  
a) Eaves, chimneys, bay windows, overhangs, cornices, awnings, canopies, porches, 

decks, pergolas, balconies, stoops, and similar architectural features may 
encroach into setbacks by no more than 4 feet, subject to compliance with 
applicable standards of the Uniform Building Code and Uniform Fire Code.  Second 
story bay windows, balconies, awnings, and canopies may extend up to two feet 
into public right-of-way upon approval by the City Engineer and Building Official.  

b) Maximum front setbacks may be exceeded up to ten additional feet for mixed use 
or non-residential developments upon determination by the Planning Director 
that 100 percent of the additional setback would be used to provide enhanced 
pedestrian amenities such as plazas, arcades, courtyards, or other such usable 
pedestrian space as a feature of the development.  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 189 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 84



c) Where a public utility easement is wider than the maximum setback of the 
applicable district, the structure may be set back to accommodate the easement.  

d) Where a residential garage or carport is directly accessible from a public or private 
street or alley, the setback to the opening of the garage or carport shall be either 
five feet or nineteen feet except: 

I. Where the setback of the dwelling unit is greater than nineteen feet, 
then the setback to the garage/carport shall be equal to or greater than 
the dwelling unit; or 

II. Where the garage door or carport entrance is oriented perpendicular or 
nearly perpendicular to the front property line, and there is sufficient 
distance to park in front of the garage/carport entrance without 
extending over the property line or the sidewalk, then the setback shall 
be equal to or greater than the dwelling. 

e) Where loading areas or drive through lanes are permitted between a public or 
private street and the associated structure, the maximum setback requirement 
may be exceeded to accommodate the loading area or drive through lanes. The 
building shall be placed as close to the street as practicable in order to 
accommodate the loading area and drive through lanes. 

f) Cantilevered awnings and canopies may extend into the public or private street 
right-of-way, upon approval of the jurisdiction having authority over the right-of-
way and the City Engineer. 

G.  Building Height  
1. Maximum height standards. Maximum height standards for the Mixed Use Districts are 

shown in Table 2. For buildings where structured parking is integrated into the building 
envelope, the floors occupied by parking shall not be counted toward the maximum 
building height, provided that: 

 
a) The design of the building with integrated structured parking complies with the 

development standards contained in Section III.I for off-street parking and the design 
standards contained in Section IV.5, for location and design of off-street parking 
including structured parking. 

b) The design of the building complies with the design standards contained in Section IV, 
that address building facade, building step-back and architectural design 
requirements. 

2. Minimum height standards. Minimum height standards are shown in Table 2. 
 
3. Within Mixed Use District building height is measured from native grade, four feet outside 

the foundation of the structure. For purposes of calculating minimum and maximum 
height as cited in Table 2 and notwithstanding the provisions of the Oregon Building Code.   
 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 190 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 84



H.  Building Height Transition 
 

1. Notwithstanding the setback standards provided in Section III.F, development in the 
Mixed Use District shall provide for a building height transition when adjacent to existing 
single family residential development which is zoned R-7.5 or R5 to provide compatible 
scale and privacy between developments. This requirement is that taller buildings shall 
“step-down” to create a building height transition to adjacent single family residential 
developments.  

2. This standard applies to new and vertically expanded buildings in a Mixed Use District 
within 20 feet (measured horizontally) of an existing single family residential building with 
a height of 30 feet or less. 

3. This standard is met when the height of the taller building (x) does not exceed one foot 
of height for every one foot separating the new building from the existing single family 
residential structure (y) as shown in Figure 2.  

Figure 2 - Building Height Transition 

 
III  Off Street Parking and Loading 
 

1. Off-Street Parking and Loading Standards. Off-street parking and loading for development 
in the MU District shall be developed in accordance with Sections 16.155 of this 
ordinance, except as modified in this Section. In the event of conflict, the parking 
standards contained in this Section shall control. 

2. The minimum required parking for the permitted commercial, cottage industry, public 
and semi-public uses in the MU District shall average 2 spaces per 1,000 square feet of 
leasable gross floor area throughout the project. Shared parking shall be required when 
the development project is under the control of a single owner/developer and contains 
commercial, cottage industry, public and semi-public uses with staggered peak parking 
demands. A reduction in the minimum required parking may be granted by the Planning 
Director, provided that the following criteria have been met: 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 191 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 84



a) The amount of off-street parking to be provided will be sufficient to serve the 
uses for which it is intended. 

b) The decrease in required off-street parking shall be based on a parking demand 
study prepared by a qualified parking or traffic consultant, civil engineer, 
licensed architect or urban planner, which substantiates the basis for granting a 
reduced number of parking spaces. The parking demand study shall include, at a 
minimum, the following: 

c) Size and type of uses or activities on site; 

d) Composition of tenancy on site; 

e) Rate of parking turnover; 

f) Peak traffic and parking loads to be encountered; 

g) Local parking habits including proximity and convenience factors; 

h) Availability of public transportation. 

i) Use of shared parking for the development project and transportation demand 
management techniques such as employee carpooling or vanpooling, dedicated 
valet parking, increased bicycle parking facilities, provision of subsidized or 
discounted transit passes to employees, and rideshare promotions. 

j) A transit stop is located within 800 feet of the development project. 

3. The minimum required off-street parking spaces for residential uses is as follows: 
 

Type of Dwelling Unit Minimum Required Off-Street 
Parking Spaces 

Attached dwelling units (studio, 1-
bedroom, 2-bedroom, 3-bedroom units) 
and the residential portion of live-work 
units 

1 space per dwelling unit 

Age-restricted dwelling unit (60 years or 
older) 

0.50 space per dwelling unit 

  
4. Off-Street Maximum Parking. The off-street parking cap for Non-Residential Development 

Projects including the Non-Residential Component of Mixed Use Development is 3 spaces 
per 1,000 square feet of leasable gross floor area throughout the project. The off-street 
parking cap for Residential Development Projects is not more than 150% of the minimum 
required off-street parking. All development projects providing off-street parking in 
excess of the minimum required off-street parking shall comply with the following 
criteria: 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 192 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 84



a) The need for increased off-street parking is based on a parking demand study 
prepared by a qualified parking or traffic consultant, civil  

b) The need for increased off-street parking is based on a parking demand study 
prepared by a qualified parking or traffic consultant, civil engineer, licensed 
architect or urban planner, which substantiates the basis for granting the 
increased number of parking spaces.  The parking demand study shall include, at 
a minimum, the following: 

 Size and type of uses or activities on site; 

 Composition of tenancy on site; 

 Rate of parking turnover; 

 Peak traffic and parking loads to be encountered; 

 Local parking habits including proximity and convenience factors; 

 Availability of public transportation. 

c) Use of shared parking for the development project.   Required off-street parking 
may be accommodated within shared parking facilities located on-site or off-site 
if the shared parking facilities are located within 800 feet from the development 
and are for non-residential uses.  Shared parking located within off-site shared 
parking facilities shall be designated and signed as belonging to the remote 
development and shall be part of the legal requirements for occupancy of the 
development. 

d) Use of transportation demand management techniques such as employee 
carpooling or vanpooling, dedicated valet parking, provision of alternative vehicles 
for shared use by residents, increased bicycle parking facilities, provision of 
subsidized or discounted transit passes to employees or residents, rideshare 
promotions. 

e) Reduction in surface parking through provision of on-site structured parking which 
is integrated into the building envelope to accommodate the increased off-street 
parking. 

5. Shared Parking. Shared parking is encouraged within the MU District. Shared parking 
can be provided on-site or off-site if the shared parking facilities are located within 800 
feet of the development project and are for non-residential uses. Shared parking located 
within off-site shared parking facilities shall be designated and signed as belonging to 
the remote development and shall be part of the legal requirements for occupancy of 
the development. 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 193 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 84



A parking demand study shall be provided to the Planning Director for any development 
projects proposing or required to provide shared parking facilities. The parking demand 
study shall be prepared by a qualified parking or traffic consultant, civil engineer, licensed 
architect or urban planner, which substantiates the basis for granting the increased 
number of parking spaces. The parking demand study shall include, at a minimum, the 
following: 

 
a) Size and type of uses or activities on site; 

b) Composition of tenancy on site; 

c) Rate of parking turnover; 

d) Peak traffic and parking loads to be encountered; 

e) Local parking habits including proximity and convenience factors; 

f) Availability of public transportation. 

 
The Planning Director may utilize the Urban Land Institute’s (ULI) Shared Parking 
methodology as a guide in reviewing shared parking proposals. 

 
6. On-Street Parking Credit. The amount of off-street parking required may be reduced by 

one off-street parking space for every on-street parking space adjacent to the 
development. On-street parking shall follow the established configuration of existing on-
street parking, except that angled parking may be allowed for some streets, where 
permitted by City, ODOT and/or County standards. The following constitutes an on-street 
parking space: 

 
a) Parallel parking, each 24 feet of uninterrupted curb; 

b) Curb space must be connected to the lot which contains the use; 

c) Parking spaces that would not obstruct a required clear vision area, nor any other 
parking that violates any law or street standard; and 

d) On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use may not be used exclusively by 
that use, but shall be available for general public use at all times.  No signs or actions 
limiting general public use of on-street spaces is permitted.  

J.  Open Space for Residential Developments 
Residential projects including mixed use projects with residential uses shall provide a minimum 
of 100 square feet of usable open space per unit, which may be private yards, courtyards, 
atriums, balconies, patios, gardens including rooftop gardens, porches, terraces, or commonly 
owned tracts. Usable open space within such residential projects may be privately accessible to 
residents and guests only, without providing public accessibility; however projects are 
encouraged to provide some public or semi-public usable open space in order to create 
attractive, vibrant places to live, work, shop, and recreate. The development standards for some 
of the different types of usable open space listed herein are as follows:  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 194 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 84



 
1. Common open space areas shall be convenient to the majority of dwellings and shall 

contain amenities appropriate to the development project’s size. Potential amenities 
could include art, sculpture, fountains or water features, benches, seat walls, raised 
planting beds, etc. 

2. Private usable open space shall be contiguous to the unit served and should be screened 
from public view for privacy. All balconies and patios that front a public street should be 
substantially enclosed for screening and privacy.  Balconies are encouraged to be 
oriented so as not to have a direct line-of-sight into adjacent units within the 
development. 

3. Private usable open space in the form of balconies or porches shall have a minimum 
average depth and width of six (6) feet in order to accommodate a small table and 
chairs. 

4. Patios shall have a minimum depth of six (6) feet and width of ten (10) feet.  Patio 
depths and widths greater than ten (10) feet are preferable. 

5. Use of rooftop spaces for courtyards, gardens and terraces may be used as common 
open space for the development, when directly accessible to the units it serves. 

6. Use of decorative pavers and pervious pavement treatment for hardscape areas such as 
plazas and courtyards is encouraged. Changes in paving color, pattern and texture also 
help to define public and private open space and add visual interest. 

7. Within usable open space areas, incorporation of ample landscaping in beds or planters 
which provide year-round greenery is encouraged.  

IV.  DESIGN STANDARDS 
  
A.  Purpose 
This Section establishes design standards for development in the Mixed Use District.  These clear 
and objective standards shall apply to permitted uses.  
 
The design standards described in this subsection are intended to promote good quality design 
in site development and new building construction within mixed use zoning designations. Good 
design in mixed use zones results in buildings and dwellings visually compatible with one another 
and adjacent neighborhoods, contributing to a district which is attractive, visually stimulating, 
active and safe. These qualities contribute to the creation of an environment which facilitates 
easy pedestrian movement and a rich mixture of uses. A diversity of architectural styles is 
encouraged except in large scale mixed-use developments where unified architectural and urban 
design is important to the identity of the development project. On sites protected by a historic 
or cultural resource overlay zone or designation, architectural consistency with the design 
standards of the overlay zone or designation shall be required.  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 195 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 84



 
B.   Process 
All new development and expansions of existing uses located in mixed use districts shall comply 
with these design standards during Development Review.  
 
C.  Building and Site Design Standards 
The standards and guidelines contained in this subsection are intended to encourage good 
quality, pedestrian-sensitive design in new building construction. These qualities contribute to 
the creation of a mixed use area which facilitates easy pedestrian movement and establishment 
of a rich mixture of uses.  
 

1. Building Entry and Orientation Requirements 
  

The purpose of this subsection is to require buildings and entrances to be oriented to 
the street to the maximum extent practicable to encourage pedestrian access and 
movement.  Requirements for orientation and primary entrances are intended to 
provide for convenient, direct and accessible pedestrian routes to and from public 
sidewalks and transit facilities; provide for safe, pleasant and convenient pedestrian 
circulation by connecting activities within a structure to the adjacent sidewalk and to 
nearby transit stops; and promote the use of pedestrian and transit modes of 
transportation to retail and commercial facilities. 
 
The following design standards shall apply to development in Mixed Use Districts 
except where noted: 
 

a. All ground-floor tenant spaces with at least 25 feet of frontage facing a public or 
private street shall have at least one building entrance oriented to the adjacent 
street. Such an entrance shall open directly to the outside and shall not require a 
pedestrian to first pass through a garage, parking lot or loading area to gain access 
to the entrance from the street, but the entrance may include architectural 
features such as arcades, anti-chambers, porticos and the like without being in 
violation of this provision.  If a building has frontage on more than one street, the 
building shall provide a main building entrance oriented to one of the streets or a 
single entrance to the corner where the two streets intersect.  Where one single 
tenant has 200 feet or more of frontage on a public or private street, one 
additional entrance shall be provided for each 200 feet of frontage on one of the 
public or private streets.  Freestanding banking institutions and restaurants 
located in the MU District are exempt from the provisions contained in this 
subsection and may locate the primary building entrance on any façade of the 
structure. A clear internal site pedestrian sidewalk or pathway shall be provided 
to the building entrance from all public or private street sidewalks. A building may 
have more building entrances than required by this Section oriented to a public or 
private street, and may have secondary entrances facing off-street parking areas 
and loading areas. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 196 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 84



b. An exception to the requirement of paragraph a. above shall be allowed upon 
finding that: 

i. The slope of the land between the building and the street is greater than 
1:12 for more than twenty feet (20’) and a more accessible pedestrian 
route to the building is available from a different side of the building; 

ii. The land between the building and the street contains a natural resource 
which would be unavoidably and irreparably degraded by providing a 
reasonably direct pedestrian connection and an alternative route without 
such impacts is available; or 

c. Residential dwellings fronting on a public or private street shall have a main 
entrance to the dwelling opening onto the front of the dwelling at the ground floor 
level. Such an entrance shall open directly to the outside and shall not require 
passage through a garage to gain access to the doorway. The doorway may be 
above final grade where a porch, stoop, portico, anti-chamber, wheelchair ramp 
or similar architectural feature is included in the design. Ground floor single family 
attached and row/townhouse residential units fronting on a public or private 
street shall have separate entries directly from the major pedestrian route. 
Ground floor and upper story residential units in a multi-family building fronting 
on a public or private street may share one or more entries accessible directly 
from the street. 

d. Residential building facades over 150 feet in length facing a street shall provide 
two or more main building entrances.  

e. Entryways into mixed use buildings containing residential units shall be clearly 
marked with a physical feature incorporated into the building or an appropriately 
scaled element applied to the facade.  

 
2. Ground Floor Windows and Building Façade Requirements 
Long expanses of blank walls facing a street or other public areas detract from the 
attractiveness of the streetscape and perceived safety of pedestrians using those 
spaces. The standards of this subsection are intended to enhance street safety and 
provide a comfortable street environment by providing ground-level features of 
interest to pedestrians along streets. These standards also have the purpose of 
encouraging surveillance opportunities where buildings face abutting streets and 
public areas, preventing fortress-like facades, and avoiding a monotonous pedestrian 
environment. The standards also help enhance the economic vitality of a 
neighborhood by providing the opportunity for merchants to display goods and 
advertise their wares to shoppers. By encouraging “window shopping” in mixed use 
districts the activity on the street is increased along with security. 
 
The following design standards shall apply to development in Mixed Use Districts: 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 197 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 84



 
a. All development shall provide ground floor windows on the building facade facing 

and adjacent to a public street, or facing onto a park, plaza or other public outdoor 
space. Required windows shall allow views into lobbies or similar areas of activity, 
pedestrian entrances, or display windows. Required windows shall provide a lower 
sill no more than three feet (3’) above grade; except where interior floor levels 
prohibit such placement, the sill may be located not less than two feet (2’) above 
the finished floor level to a maximum sill height of five feet (5’) above exterior 
grade. Where on-site service docks and loading areas are provided, buildings 
containing 10,000 square feet or more, and demised up to two individual tenants, 
are exempt from the ground floor window requirement. 

b. Darkly tinted windows and mirrored windows which block two way visibility are 
prohibited as ground floor windows required under this provision except where 
the closest face of the building to the nearest edge of the sidewalk within a public 
right-of-way or private street parallel and adjacent to the building is greater than 
fifty feet (50’). 

c. In all districts, building frontages along streets shall break any flat, monolithic 
facade by including architectural elements such as bay windows, recessed 
entrances or other articulation so as to provide pedestrian scale to the first floor. 

d. Where ground floor windows are required by this section on multifamily, 
apartment, public institutional and commercial structures, exterior walls facing a 
public street, public open space, pedestrian walkway and/or transit station shall 
have windows, display areas or doorways for at least fifty (50%) of the length and 
fifty percent (50%) of the area of the ground level wall area, which is defined as 
the area up to the finished ceiling height of the fronting space or fifteen feet (15’) 
above finished grade, whichever is less. 

e) On single family detached, single family attached, townhouse, and rowhouse 
structures, exterior walls facing a public street, public open space, pedestrian 
walkway and/or transit station shall have windows, display areas or doorways 
for at least twenty percent (20%) of the ground level wall area, which is defined 
as the area up to the finished ceiling height of the fronting space or fifteen (15’) 
above finished grade, whichever is less. 

 
3. Building Step-Back Requirements 

Step-back requirements help assure a comfortable street environment by 
preventing fortress-like facades, providing light and air at the street level, and 
providing features of interest to pedestrians along streets in mixed use districts. 

The following design standards shall apply: 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 198 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 84



a) Step-back requirements shall be achieved, at the option of the applicant, by 
one of two methods: 

i. Floors above the second floor shall be stepped back a minimum of five feet 
(5’) for the first story above two, and an additional five feet (5’) for floors 
above three (3).  The maximum step-back under this method shall not 
exceed fifteen feet (15’); or 

ii. A building shall be stepped-back by an appropriate amount from the plane 
of the street so as to maintain an angle not greater than sixty (60) degrees 
between the top of the building facade fronting on to the street and the 
back of the sidewalk of the opposite side of the same street. 

b) Upon petition of the applicant, the Planning Director may waive the building 
step-back requirements of this subsection provided that the applicant clearly 
demonstrates the proposed project: 

i. extends the same architectural features described in paragraph (a) above 
the ground floor level through variations in design, detail, and proportion, 
and by avoiding designs featuring a monolithic street facade; and 

ii. is designed so as not to obstruct sunlight from falling on the back of the 
sidewalk on the opposite side of the street for more than four hours of any 
given day between March 21 and September 21. 

4. Architectural Design Requirements 
Good design results in buildings visually compatible with one another and 
adjacent neighborhoods, contributing to mixed use areas which are attractive, 
stimulating, active and safe.  

The following design requirements shall apply to development in Mixed Use 
Districts: 

a) Buildings shall promote and enhance a pedestrian scale and orientation on the 
facade facing the public street. Street-side building facades and dwelling units 
within all Mixed Use Districts shall be varied and articulated to provide visual 
interest to pedestrians and avoid a flat appearance. In addition, development 
proposals shall make provisions and include designs consistent with the 
following: 

i. All new commercial, public/institutional, mixed use, and residential 
buildings constructed within a Mixed Use District shall demonstrate during 
the Development Review process that it promotes and enhances a 
pedestrian scale and orientation on any facade facing a public or private 
street and it incorporates discernible and architecturally appropriate 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 199 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 84



features; such as, but not limited to, cornices, bases, fenestration, fluted 
masonry, bays, recesses, arcades, display windows, unique entry areas or 
other treatments for visual interest, to create community character and to 
promote a sense of pedestrian scale. The design shall recognize that the 
simple relief provided by window cutouts or sills on an otherwise flat 
facade, in and of themselves, does not meet the requirements of this 
subsection; and 

ii. All residential dwellings, of any type, constructed within any Mixed Use 
District shall be constructed with exterior building materials and finishes 
of high quality to convey an impression of permanence and durability.  
Materials such as, and including, masonry, stucco, stone, terra cotta, tile, 
cedar shakes and shingles, beveled or ship-lap or other narrow-course 
horizontal boards or siding, authentic vertical board & batten siding, 
articulated architectural concrete masonry units (CMU), and similar 
durable architectural materials are allowed. Materials such as, and 
including, T-111 siding, plain or plain painted plywood and strandboard 
sheets, concrete or cinder block, smooth surface concrete panels, and 
similar quality and non-durable material are prohibited. 

b) Commercial buildings and sites shall be organized to group the utilitarian 
functions away from the public view. Delivery and loading operations, HVAC 
equipment, trash compacting and collection, and other utility and service 
functions shall be incorporated into the overall design of the building(s) and 
the landscaping. The visual and acoustic impacts of these functions, along with 
all wall- or ground-mounted mechanical, electrical and communications 
equipment shall be out of view from adjacent properties and public streets, 
and screening materials and landscape screens shall be architecturally 
compatible with and not inferior to the principal materials of the building and 
primary landscaping. The visual and acoustic aspects of roof-mounted 
equipment, vents and chimneys shall be minimized by placing equipment 
behind parapets, within architectural screening, roof-top landscaping, or by 
using other aesthetically pleasing methods of screening and deadening the 
sound of such equipment. 

5. Location and Design of Off-Street Parking 

Parking should be located and designed so as to not only facilitate its major function but 
also to complement and encourage easy and safe pedestrian movement to, through and 
around the facility. The scale and orientation of parking areas shall be consistent with 
their purposes in supporting a mix of commercial and residential uses and shall be 
consistent with the pedestrian- and transit-oriented community to which they contribute. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 200 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 84



Except as expressly modified below, the parking design standards contained in Sections 
16.155 shall apply. The following additional standards shall apply only within Mixed Use 
Districts:  

a) No surface parking or maneuvering area shall be located between the facing 
façade of an adjacent building (or a line extended from the plane thereof) and a 
public or private street where a maximum setback is prescribed by this Section.  
Service docks and loading areas may be located between a building and public or 
private street when an anchor tenant requires the use of delivery vehicles with an 
overall length of forty (40) feet or greater and where the service docks and loading 
areas comply with the provisions contained in Section IV.C.5.b. 

b) To create pedestrian interest, maneuvering areas, service docks, and loading 
areas shall be located interior to the site wherever practicable. Where locations 
of these facilities on the site exterior, adjacent to a street, driveway, or 
pedestrian route cannot be avoided, exterior building walls or screen walls for 
such facilities shall include decorative elements that provide visual (pedestrian) 
interest such as openings with decorative grates, artwork, and decorative tiles. 
Screening walls surrounding service docks and loading areas shall be a minimum 
of 12 feet in height. Windows and display area are not required on walls 
surrounding service docks and loading areas. 

c) For development projects in a Mixed Use District that are required to provide 
integrated structured parking for increases in the maximum building footprint per 
Section E, and where the floors occupied by parking are not counted toward the 
maximum building height per Section G.1, the structured parking shall be wrapped 
at the ground level with street level uses for projects with street frontage on 
arterial or collector streets. For projects proposing integrated structured parking 
with frontage on local or neighborhood route streets, the structured parking shall 
be wrapped at the ground level with residential or public open space areas, such 
as small plazas with seating areas. 

If there are multiple parking floors within the integrated structured parking, the 
upper floors shall be wrapped with office and/or residential uses or two-story 
eating and drinking establishments. The area of the roof of the structured parking 
not occupied by buildings shall provide usable courtyard space, terraces, green 
roofs and/or community garden plots, which are accessible by the office and 
residential uses and/or eating and drinking establishments. 

The size of the parking entrance shall be minimized and visually integrated into 
the overall architecture of the building by continuing a frieze, cornice, canopy, 
overhang, trellis, decorative grilles, or other devices from adjacent structures 
along the façade. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 201 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 84



d) Bicycle parking spaces shall be sited so as not to occupy space within, reduce the 
size of, or impede the use of required sidewalks, pedestrian ways, curbside 
landscape strips, landscape buffers or usable open spaces. All bicycle parking must 
be easily accessible and shall be equipped or located so as to allow the bicycle to 
be conveniently and securely locked to a parking device or within a secured bicycle 
parking area. Covered bicycle parking shall provide security and protection from 
the weather. Covered parking may be provided within a parking structure, garage, 
under a separate roof, within a bicycle locker, or in a designated area within a 
building or residential complex. Except in single-family detached and duplex 
dwelling units, allowance for required bicycle parking within an individual 
residence is not considered to be in compliance with this requirement. 

e) Surface parking areas shall provide perimeter parking lot landscaping adjacent to 
a street other than a major pedestrian route which meets one of the following 
standards: 

i. A five foot (5’) wide planting strip between the right-of-way and the 
parking area shall be provided for streets designated Collector or Local on 
the Transportation System Plan. A ten foot (10’) wide planting strip 
between the right-of-way and parking area shall be provided for streets 
designated Arterial. The planting strip may be pierced by pedestrian-
accessible and vehicular accessways.  Planting strips shall be planted with 
large-scale, high canopy, horizontally-branching street tree species and/or 
an evergreen hedge. Hedges shall be no less than thirty (30”) inches or 
more than forty-two (42”) inches in height. Hedges and other landscaping 
shall be planted and maintained to afford adequate sight distance for 
vehicles exiting the parking lot. 

ii. In lieu of hedges specified in subsection d.1, decorative walls or fences 
thirty (30”) inches to forty-two (42”) inches in height parallel to and not 
nearer than two feet (2’) from the right-of-way line may be utilized. The 
area between the wall or fence and the back of the sidewalk shall be 
landscaped.   The required wall or screening shall be designed to allow for 
access to the site and sidewalk by pedestrians and shall be constructed and 
maintained to afford adequate sight distance as described above for 
vehicles exiting the parking lot. 

f) Surface parking areas shall provide interior landscaping which meets the following 
standards: 

i. Angled or perpendicular parking spaces shall provide, where needed, 
extruded curbs (tire stops) or widened curbs to prevent bumper overhang 
into landscape areas or walkways. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 202 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 84



ii. All surface parking facilities shall include landscaping along the perimeter 
of the lot to a depth of at least four feet (4’). Perimeter landscaping shall 
not be required where two parking lots using a common driveway are 
joined by a common circulation aisle or other traffic area, and landscaping 
may be reduced or eliminated adjacent to landscaped open space in order 
to transition the open space landscaping into the parking area and afford 
better access between the two areas.  Landscaping shall also be installed 
within planting bays, and in any other area where parking stalls, circulation 
aisles, driveways, or pedestrian movements would not be precluded by the 
landscaping. Except where requested by the applicant, if in following these 
standards, the amount of interior landscaping would exceed ten percent 
(10%) of the area devoted to outdoor auto parking facilities, the amount 
of required landscaping shall be limited to ten percent (10%). All 
landscaping required under the provisions of this subsection may be 
applied towards compliance with other applicable landscaping 
requirements.  

iii. A minimum of one 2½” caliper street tree shall be provided in protected 
planting bays located within the surface parking area at the end of each 
parking row and at intervals not exceeding 100 feet within the parking 
rows.  Planting bays shall have a minimum width of five feet (5’) and a 
minimum area of 185 square feet for double loaded parking bays and 90 
square feet for single loaded parking bays. The remainder of each bay shall 
be landscaped in a manner consistent with the provisions of this 
subsection. 

iv. All parking lot construction, internal walkways, markings and access shall 
meet and fully comply with the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 

e. Except in residential areas, parking associated with new development shall be 
designed to the extent practicable to connect with auto parking areas on adjacent 
sites to eliminate the necessity of utilizing the street for parallel movements. 

f. General Landscaping Standards for Off-Street Parking Areas.  

i. The minimum planting size for all required trees shall be 2½ inch caliper as 
measured by American Association of Nurserymen standards. Trees shall 
be deciduous shade trees capable of at least thirty-five feet (35’) in height 
and spread at maturity. 

ii. A minimum of seventy percent (70%) of all required landscaped areas, 
including required planting strips and planting bays, shall be covered with 
trees, or shrubs. All areas shall also include continuous ground cover 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 203 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 84



consisting of lawn, low growing evergreen shrubs, or evergreen ground 
cover. 

iii. Evergreen shrubs shall be not less than two feet (2’) higher than finished 
grade at the time of planting. Evergreen shrubs shall be of the type that 
grow to be at least thirty-six inches (36”) higher than finished grade. 

iv. All curb cuts are subject to approval based on standards to ensure safe 
pedestrian circulation, traffic flow, access points needed for the proper 
functioning of the development and the objectives of the Section. To meet 
these standards, consolidation of curb cuts may be a condition of 
development approval. 

7.  Requirements for Improvements Between Streets and Buildings 

Landscaping or “hardscaping” of property between the street curb and buildings promotes and 
enhances a comfortable pedestrian scale and orientation and encourages pedestrian use of the 
area. 

The following street design standards shall apply to development in Mixed Use Districts: 

a) The property between the street curb and an adjacent building shall be landscaped or 
hardscaped.  Landscaping shall be irrigated.  

b) Except for single family detached dwellings, where a hard-surfaced area, other than a 
pedestrian connection leading from the sidewalk to a building entrance, is used in lieu 
of landscaping between the sidewalk and the building, such areas shall contain at least 
two (2) pedestrian-sensitive amenities. Such amenities include, but are not limited to, 
benches, low walls with seating or planters atop, drinking fountains, courtyards, free-
standing planters, street furniture, public art or other pedestrian space or design 
features integrated into the overall design of the building or portion of the site in 
order to enhance the pedestrian environment. 

c) Trees selected from the City’s approved street tree list. Trees may be within tree wells 
with a minimum planting area of 15 square feet (with standard 3’ x 5’, 4’ x 4’ or 4’ 
diameter cast iron grates.) Such trees shall be planted every thirty feet (30’) on center 
(or, depending on species, at some other distance to ensure their proper spacing) so 
as to develop a continuous canopy when mature. Street trees shall be at least 2½ 
inches in caliper at planting, shall be planted within an approved root barrier, and shall 
be irrigated and maintained by the property owner along with other landscaping 
planted within the parking strip.  

d) Topping, shearing or pollarding of street trees is prohibited, unless necessary to 
protect overhead utility lines.  

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 204 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 84



e) Except as noted below, all public utility distribution and service connections to new 
buildings and dwellings within all Mixed Use Districts shall be underground.  Aerial 
utility service (electricity, telephone, cable, etc.) may be used in new construction 
where all of the following circumstances apply: 

i. The project is an in-fill building or dwelling within an existing neighborhood 
where utility service is provided aerially rather than underground; 

ii. The project is located between other utility users on the same block face; 

iii. It would not be practicable to serve the new project underground without 
also serving the neighboring uses; and 

iv. The neighboring uses on the same block face and the utility company are 
unwilling to pay the additional cost of undergrounding their service; 

f) Ornamental street lights shall be installed when public right-of-way improvements are 
required as a part of a development. 

g) Bulb-outs, or curb extensions, shall be constructed at all intersections of public streets 
when public right-of-way improvements are required as a part of a development. The 
design of the bulb-outs shall be approved by the Planning Director and City Engineer. 

V.  REVIEW PROCEDURES 

A.  Section 16.175 Design Review, or any amendment thereof, and the provisions of this section 
shall apply to all uses permitted in Mixed Use Districts except for construction of single family 
detached dwellings built on a single lot. Provisions of 16.135 Subdivisions, applies to all project 
proposals involving the subdivision or partitioning of existing properties. 

B.   Applications for Development Review approval for projects within a Mixed Use District shall 
include the pertinent materials specified in Section 16.175 as well as preliminary plans and 
drawings, and other pertinent materials and reports illustrating and documenting the following: 

1. Site plans, housing types, proposed commercial and industrial uses, elevation sketches, 
exterior building material/color boards and floor plans for all typical multi-family and 
attached single family dwellings, mixed use and non-residential buildings within the 
project; 

2. Residential densities; 

3. Usable open space, landscaping, and natural resource and tree preservation plan; 

4. Planned streets and alleys, public rights-of-way, pedestrian and bicycle system plan, and 
off- and on-street parking; 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 205 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 84



5. Stormwater management and grading plans, underground utility service plan and 
easement dedications, including infrastructure location, sizing, and system connections; 

6. Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance provisions for the applicable 
Mixed Use District. 

C.   Development Review 

The City shall require that the developer provide for and establish one or more property owner 
associations, or similar mechanism acceptable to the City Attorney, for the ownership and 
maintenance of any common open space, private streets or alleys, or other appropriate lands 
and improvements which are of a public nature and are not dedicated to and accepted by the 
City.  

Further, the City shall require any such association be incorporated, or otherwise legally 
organized such that the association is legally capable of, and shall adopt and file by-laws, 
restrictive covenants, and/or other binding agreements that provide an enforceable mechanism 
to raise the revenue required to maintain such property, and which include provisions that 
prohibit the association from disposing of or abandoning any common open space, private street 
or alley without the permission of the City, in which case the association shall first offer to 
dedicate the property to the City and shall provide for its long-term maintenance in a manner 
satisfactory to the City. Nothing in this provision shall obligate or be construed to imply any 
obligation by the City to accept any street, alley, park, greenway, open space, or other common 
lot, parcel or tract of land or improvement proposed to be dedicated by an applicant, owner or 
developer of a project, or by any owner’s association. 

D.  Variances 

The development and design standards in this Section are intended to implement the goals and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. Variances to these standards are discouraged. However, 
some sites may be difficult to develop in compliance with these regulations. In those instances, 
the Variance process provides relief where the proposed development continues to meet the 
intended purpose of these regulations. 

1. Standards 

a) A Variance by the Planning Commission may be granted to any development 
regulation or design standard contained in this Section provided the Commission finds 
that by granting the Variance: 

i. The adjustment will equally or better meet the purposes of the Mixed Use Districts 
and of the regulation to be modified; 

ii. The Variance or cumulative Variance adjustments results in a project which is still 
consistent with the overall purpose and intent of the district; and 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 206 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 84



iii.  The Variance will not result in significant detrimental impacts to the environment 
or the natural, historic, cultural or scenic resources of the City. 

b) The Planning Commission may approve a Variance from the standards listed below if, 
in addition to the criteria listed in subsection (D)(1)(a), the proposal meets the 
following criteria:  

i. Multiple main building entrances required to be oriented to the street.  Variances 
may be granted to allow a single secured entrance to an establishment upon a 
finding that the internal security measures which are standard operating 
procedures of the applicant would be irreparably harmed by this requirement; 
except in no case shall there be less than one main entrance oriented to a public 
or private street unless otherwise authorized by an exception contained in this 
Section. 

ii. Ground floor windows. A variance to the percentage of window area required for 
ground floor windows in building facades where required by this Section may be 
allowed upon findings that: 

a. such windows would unavoidably compromise necessary personal privacy or 
security within the building (for example, privacy in a clinic examination room, 
security in a pharmacy storeroom, or security and privacy in a research and 
development laboratory); 

b.  due to the design of the structure or other demonstrable restrictions or 
constraints, the required personal privacy or security cannot otherwise be 
provided; and 

c.  the loss of the window area cannot be recaptured elsewhere on the facade. 

2.  Application and Fee  

A request for a variance may be initiated by a property owner or authorized agent by filing an 
application with the City Recorder. The applicant shall submit plans to the City shall pay the fee 
set in the Master Fee Schedule. 

3.  Public Hearing on a Variance 

Before acting on a request for a variance, the Planning Commission shall consider the variance at 
a Public Hearing held within 40 days after filing of the application. Not less than 20 days prior to 
the date of the Hearing, the City Recorder shall give written notice by mail of the hearing to 
owners of property situated within a 200 foot radius of the boundary of the property subject to 
the request using for this purpose names and addresses of owners as shown upon the current 
records of the County Assessor. Failure of a person to receive the notice specified in this Section 
shall not invalidate any proceeding in connection with the application for a variance. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 207 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 84



4.  Action of the Planning Commission 

The Commission may attach conditions to an authorized variance which it feels are necessary to 
protect the public interests and carry out the purpose of this Ordinance. The City Recorder shall 
notify the applicant for a variance, in writing, of the Commission’s action within five days after 
the Commission has rendered its decision.  

VI.  DEFINITIONS  

Except as expressly modified below, the definitions set forth in 16.05 Definitions shall apply. The 
following additional definitions shall apply only within Mixed Use Districts. 

a. Access.  An unobstructed means of ingress and egress from a lot or parcel to a public street, 
alley or a City-approved private street or tract, either through private ownership or 
permanent easement over an improved private street, alley or driveway of sufficient width 
and structural cross-section to meet or exceed the standards for emergency vehicle approach 
to the use on said lot or parcel. Also applicable to “flag lots,” where there is no frontage on 
an existing or proposed alley, or public or private street. 

b. Adjacent.  A building or use is adjacent to a transit trunk route, major pedestrian route, transit 
station or point of interest if the building or use is sited on a parcel or lot abutting the route, 
station or point of interest, and is not separated from the route, station or point of interest 
by an existing or planned intervening building as shown on an approved master plan. 
Intervention of a street or alley does not interrupt adjacency. 

c. Auto-Accommodating.  A use, area or district which is primarily pedestrian-sensitive but 
includes facilities where access by automobiles is allowed without giving preference to autos 
or allowing auto-oriented services such as drive-through windows or services. 

d. Bed and Breakfast.  A residential building or group of residential buildings with not more than 
five separate bedroom units for travelers’ temporary accommodation, which unites do not 
contain individual cooking facilities with the lodging price including the price of a morning 
meal available only to guests of the inn.   Additional rooms or structures may be added onto 
the original building or site provided the total number of bedroom units does not exceed five. 

e. Certified Wood Products.  Certified wood products are those made from lumber harvested in 
a sustainable manner and certified by a reliable third party.  The certifying groups most active 
at this time are the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), Sustainable Forestry Initiative (SFI) and 
the Canadian Standards Association (CSA). 

f. Commercial Uses.  Uses and activities involving the sale, lease or rent of new or used products 
to the general public; the provision of personal, consumer and business services (including 
daycare for children and the elderly) and entertainment; the provision of product repair or 
services for consumer and business goods; and office facilities for business, government, 
professional, medical (including free-standing medical, dental and veterinarian clinics), and 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 208 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 84



financial services.  Commercial Uses do not include hospitals and those which are specifically 
identified as not permitted in Table-1. Animal Services Facilities as defined in Section 3 are 
considered Commercial Uses; accessory overnight pet boarding if permitted may be subject 
to conditional use approval. 

g. Community Service.  Activities and uses of a public, non-profit or charitable nature generally 
providing a local service to people of the community on site or through employees on the site 
on a regular basis. Examples include libraries, museums, senior centers, community centers, 
indoor public recreation facilities, religious institutions, corrections facilities, emergency 
services and similar facilities. Community services do not include schools, hospitals, or 
geriatric care facilities. 

h. Contiguous.  Parcels, lots and tracts of land, projects, and expansions of existing uses are 
considered contiguous regardless of interruptions by streets, alleys, public easements or 
rights-of-way provided that the parcels would otherwise abut. 

i. Cool Roof.  A roof which reflects most solar radiation before it penetrates the interior of the 
building, and which maintains a temperature a few degrees above the ambient air 
temperature. 

j. Drive-Through Facilities.  Facilities allowing transactions for goods or services without leaving 
a motor vehicle, but excluding car washes, and motor vehicle service, maintenance or repair 
facilities.  Also known as “drive-in” facilities. 

k. Ecco Roof.  An eco roof is a vegetated roof system used in place of a conventional roof.  Eco 
roofs are comprised of several layers that include a root barrier, waterproof membrane, 
drainage, soil system, and plants.   Eco roofs are also referred to as green roofs. 

l. Emergency Service Facilities.   Facilities housing police, fire or ambulance services; excluding 
jails. 

m. Establishment.   A term used to describe business activity. For purposes of this code, 
businesses shall be defined and described at the four digit Standard Industrial Classification 
(“SIC”) level set forth in the most recent edition of the Standard Industrial Classification 
Manual, published by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget. 

n. Expansion.  Enlargement of a land use increasing the overall density or intensity of the use.  
The expansion may be an addition attached to an existing structure or service facility, an 
additional structure or service facility on the same parcel, or additional structures or facilities 
constructed on land contiguous with the existing parcel.  Construction of new facilities on 
parcels which are not contiguous are considered new uses, not expansions of an existing use. 
Except as applied to commercial parking facilities, the term is not applicable to enlargement 
of existing parking lots and structures. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 209 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 84



o. Flex Space.  A building constructed to accommodate a variety of commercial, office and/or 
light industrial uses, including: administration, direct and telephone sales, back-office 
operations, product assembly, component and inventory warehousing, shipping, and related 
or similar activities. 

p. Floor Area Ratio (FAR).  Floor area ratio is the ratio of the total amount of enclosed gross floor 
area (GFA) within a building or structure to the amount of net lot area. To calculate FAR, the 
total GFA is divided by the net lot area, and typically expressed as a decimal. For the purposes 
of calculation, both floor area and net lot area are expressed in square feet.  For example, if 
the GFA for all buildings on a site totals 75,000 and the net lot area is 100,000, then the FAR 
equals 0.75, or if the total GFA equals 200,000 and the net lot area is 100,000, then the FAR 
equals 2.0. 

q. Gross Floor Area (GFA).  The sum of the horizontal areas of all floors of a  building intended 
for occupancy or storage and not including interior parking or loading spaces, measured from 
the exterior faces of exterior walls, or in the case of a common wall separating two buildings, 
from the centerline of such common wall.  GFA is also referred to as gross square feet or GSF. 

r. Gross Leasable Area (GLA).  The portion of GFA that is available for leasing to a 
tenant.  Generally, GLA is equal to GFA less “common” areas that are not leased to tenants, 
including spaces for circulation to and from tenant spaces (lobbies, atriums elevator cores, 
stairs, corridors), restrooms, utility/mechanical spaces, and loading docks. 

s. Hardscape.  Hard-surfaced areas improved in lieu of landscaping. Such areas include specially 
treated or textured concrete designed as a plaza, courtyard or building entrance and contain 
pedestrian-sensitive amenities such as benches, drinking fountains, planters, trees in grated 
wells, street furniture, lighting, public art, water features or other design features integrated 
into the overall design of a building or portion of the site. 

t. Hotel.  A building with a common entrance consisting of individual sleeping quarters for rental 
to transients, and in which no provision is made for cooking in the lodging room. A “residential 
hotel” is a hotel typically providing for longer term stays and which may allow in-room 
cooking. 

u. Major Pedestrian Route.  Any pedestrian route located along an arterial or collector street, a 
transit trunk route, or light rail transit route. A major pedestrian route also includes any local 
street or street segment within 1,300 feet of a light rail station or Transit Center where the 
street or street segment provides reasonably direct connection to the station or center. 

v. Master Plan.   A development plan for a project to be built in two or more phases. A master 
plan may involve multiple blocks, provided the blocks are contiguous or separated only by 
public or private streets or rights-of-way, pedestrian ways or space, designated open space, 
park space or protected natural areas, or surface water treatment facilities. May provide the 
basis for a Concept Development Plan in Design Review. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 210 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 84



w. Mixed Use Building or Development.   A building or development characterized by either a 
vertical or horizontal physical integration of uses.  A mixed use building is a structure at least 
two stories in height which includes a mix of uses such as retail and office uses, residential 
and commercial uses, or commercial and light industrial uses. A mixed use development 
typically consists of multiple buildings, usually with multiple stories, designed to assure a 
diversity of compatible land uses which may include a mixture of residential, office, retail, 
services, recreational, live/work units, flex space uses, and other miscellaneous uses allowed 
in a district.  A campus development is considered a mixed use development.  However, 
within a mixed use development, a mix of residential and industrial uses is prohibited in a 
single building or on immediately adjoining land. 

x. Motor Vehicle Service, Maintenance or Repair Facilities.  Facilities servicing motor vehicles, 
including gasoline stations, oil and lubrication services, tire and muffler installation and 
service, body shops, car washes, and other motor vehicle services. 

y. Neighborhood Commercial and Cottage Industry.   Neighborhood commercial includes 
“commercial uses” as defined in this subsection, provided they are small scale retail and 
service uses primarily serving nearby residential areas and neighborhood businesses and their 
employees. General office and other commercial uses which are not retail or service in nature 
are allowed on and above the second floor of a neighborhood commercial building. Cottage 
Industry includes very light industrial or manufacturing uses that do not use hazardous 
materials, and have a low impact to adjacent properties related to noise, dust, odor or light 
glare. Outdoor storage for Cottage Industry uses must be screened. 

Neighborhood commercial and Cottage Industry uses are limited in size and intensity to 
promote a local orientation and to limit adverse impacts on nearby residential areas.  
Neighborhood commercial uses may be auto-accommodating and provide off-street parking 
behind the building, but the overall development is intended to be predominantly pedestrian-
sensitive and compatible with the scale of surrounding residential development. 

z. Parking structure.  Any building above grade, below grade, or both for parking motor vehicles. 
Also referred to as structured parking. 

aa.  Pedestrian-Related Office or Service Use.  Commercial uses, excluding the sale, lease or rental 
of new or used durable goods, whose primary business relies on face-to-face customer 
contact or walk-in trade. 

bb.  Pedestrian Space.  An area or plaza on public or private property which is directly accessible 
to pedestrians and which includes two or more of the following features covering the entire 
area or disbursed throughout the entire pedestrian space: Hardscaped areas; lawn areas with 
trees and seating; awnings or other weather protection; water features incorporating, or with 
nearby, seating areas, public art or kiosks; outdoor eating areas with seating, and street-side 
vendor carts or stands selling flowers, food or other small consumer goods.  Interior corridors 
within a building, used primarily as access among rooms within the building, are not 
considered pedestrian space, but an atrium or interior court containing the above named 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 211 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 84



features and is accessible from common hallways by the public shall qualify. A space 
otherwise meeting the definition of a pedestrian space which is located within a secured area 
on private property but is accessible, used and useful to employees, residents, and other 
authorized visitors to the site, qualifies under this definition. 

cc.  Pedestrian Way.  Any paved public or private travel route intended for pedestrian use, 
whether shared with other transportation modes such as a bicycle/pedestrian accessway or 
intended solely for pedestrian use. 

dd.  Permanent Open Space.  A parcel, lot, or tract of land identified on a recorded plat or by 
deed designation as intended to provide natural area preserves or environmental, scenic or 
recreational benefits to an adjacent development. Such a parcel, lot, or tract may, at the 
discretion of the applicant, be considered a part of an abutting lot for purposes of lot setback, 
open space and similar requirements, provided that the open space is not double counted in 
the process. 

ee.  Project.  Sometimes referred to as a “development project” or “development.” A residential, 
non-residential or mixed use development to be built in one or more phases.  A project may 
involve single or multiple buildings and single or multiple blocks, provided the multiple blocks 
are contiguous or separated only by public or private streets or rights-of-way, pedestrian 
connections or spaces, designated open space, park spaces or protected natural areas, or 
stormwater treatment or detention facilities. The construction of one single family, duplex or 
ancillary dwelling built on or added to a single lot is not a project unless constructed as part 
of a larger residential development project of ten or more dwellings. 

ff.  Recreational Facilities.  Indoor and outdoor facilities, excluding usable open space, intended 
to serve the recreational needs of the general public. Indoor and outdoor “Land-extensive 
recreational facilities” are generally discouraged within the Mixed Use Districts and include 
such activities as golf courses, driving ranges, polo fields, shooting ranges, and similar uses. 

gg.  Redevelopable Land.  Land on which development has already occurred but on which, due 
to present or expected market forces, existing development is likely to be converted or 
replaced with a more intensive use. 

hh. Residential Structures. 

i. Single Family Detached Dwelling.  A detached dwelling unit, constructed on-site or 
elsewhere, situated on its own lot or parcel. 

ii. Single Family Attached Dwelling. A dwelling unit, located on its own lot, which shares one 
or more common or abutting walls with one or more dwelling units. 

iii. Attached Duplex.  A duplex, located on its own lot, which shares one or more common or 
abutting walls with one other duplex, thereby totaling four dwelling units. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 212 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 84



iv. Multi-Family Dwelling.   A structure on a single lot or parcel containing three or more units 
which share common walls or floor/ceilings with the adjacent unit(s). Multifamily 
dwellings include condominium and apartment units without regard to ownership status, 
and includes congregate (or independent) care and assisted care facilities for the elderly, 
but excludes all types of nursing home, convalescent care and institutional type living 
arrangements. 

v. Garden Apartment.  A multifamily dwelling with access to a large open space area(s) such 
as a courtyard, garden or plaza, where such access is typically provided at the ground floor 
level. 

vi. Mid-Rise Apartment.   A three- to six-story multi-family dwelling with reduced landscaping, 
generally built at 25 or more units per cre. 

vii. Rowhouse.  An attached dwelling of two or more stories that has the appearance of a 
townhouse but not located on individual lots. 

viii. Townhouse.  A single family attached dwelling of two or more stories, in a building of two 
or more units, with each dwelling unit and its underlying lot platted to allow separate 
ownership. 

ix. Ancillary Dwelling Unit.  An additional dwelling unit located on the same lot as a single 
family dwelling or duplex. 

ii. Shared Parking.  A public or private parking facility shared by two or more uses. 

jj. Transit Street.  A public arterial or collector street designated as a bus or LRT route on the 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan Map. 

kk. Transit-Supportive.  A use or development which supports increased mobility, particularly by 
transit, walking and bicycling and is sited in a pedestrian-sensitive manner. Transit-supportive 
developments are designed to enhance pedestrian and bicycle mobility and access, and to 
reduce conflicts with motor vehicles through a system of streets, pedestrian ways and bicycle 
facilities designed for multimodal access and circulation for cars and commercial vehicles, 
transit vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians. Also known as “transit-oriented development,” 
“transit-oriented use” and “TODs.” 

ll. Visitability.  Building designs which allow persons with mobility impairments to enter and 
stay, but not live, in a residence. The dwelling must include at least one zero-step entrance, 
32-inch clear opening doorways and at least one half- bathroom on the main level that meets 
the minimum clear floor space for half-bathrooms as required by the Fair Housing Act. 

mm. Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs).  Volatile Organic Compounds are an entire class of 
carbon-based chemicals that give off vapors at normal room temperatures.  Vapors may be 
harmful or trigger allergic reactions in people with environmental allergies. Products that 
emit VOCs include paints and lacquers, paint strippers, adhesives and sealants, carpets and 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 213 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 84



carpet backing, cleaning supplies, pesticides, building materials and furnishings, office 
equipment (copiers and printers), graphics and craft materials, and permanent markers. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

JOINT STUDY SESSION NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 13, 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Review 

Page 214 of 255

___________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA PACKET 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 84


	5A 081215 RS Planning Comm Agenda
	5B 072715 SS Planning Commission Minutes
	8 aMemo Revisiting discussion regarding Comp Plan status
	8 Buildable Land Photos
	8 Comp Plan slides
	8 Old packet information from 092214 PACKET
	8 x6C 1 comprehensive plan
	8 x6c3 comp plan proposed changes
	8 x6c5 comp plan map changes acreage
	8 xPages from 101314 PACKET FOR JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH CC AND PC



